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Financial Highlights
B T5 L2

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
BE-ZTZTtHF HE-_ZTF
+=HA=+—AH +=-B=+—8
IEFE IFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Turnover =31 245,082 248,300
Profit from operations R R 120,144 119,300
Profit attributable to equity EATREZFEA
shareholders of the Company PGSR 76,204 83,216
Total assets BmEE 568,596 562,504
Net assets FEE 339,848 329,223
Dividend per share (HK cents) BRRE GBI
Interim FHES 3.61 4.80
Proposed final FORARER S 6.18 5.10
Earnings per share (HK cents) SRAR GBI
Basic HAR 9.8 10.7
Diluted e 9.8 10.6
Financial ratios B &R
Net profit margin (Note 1) Fm AR (BEE 1) 31.1% 33.5%
Effective tax rate (Note 2) EBRBE (H22) 21.1% 18.6%
Current ratio (Note 3) RENLL R (H1723) 2.1 1.61
Quick ratio (Note 4) BN R (M5t 4) 2.1 1.61




Financial Highlights
5 EE

As at As at
31 December 2007 31 December 2006
R-BZLF R-ZTZTXF
+=A=+-~ t=A=t+-"
000 ‘000
T B T
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares ERTRARCEER
As at 31 December R+ZA=+—H 778,210 778,076
Weighted average number of R+=ZA=+—H
ordinary shares (basic) outstanding BT RR
as at 31 December B NI AR B (BK) 778,154 777,694

Note 1 Net profit margin = profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company/turnover — Hfz£ 1 JEBFIE =R A REFF AN F &R

Note 2 Effective tax rate = taxation/profit before taxation Witz  EBRBEFE =R/ GHEDRF
Note 3 Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities W3  REBHEFE = RBEE/ TEEE
Note 4 Quick ratio = current assets minus inventory/current liabilities Wat4  FEHE=GBEERTRE/ TEAE




Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, s.B.s.,).P. Chairman
ZNEHE L s, 1P 72

“We believe 2008 will be [ FI4E1= 2008
a year that will helpusto  Fi8K A28 5B &
build a solid foundation for DTTN&#KiES B
the future of Tradelink and IR EH)—4F o |

DTTN.”




Chairman’s Statement
FERES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (“the Board”), | wish to report that
Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited (“Tradelink”, “the Company”)
recorded a profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
HK$76.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2007.

Operating profit was HK$120.1 million. However, the share of loss from
our associate company, Digital Trade and Transportation Network Limited
(“DTTNCo0"), increased to HK$24.0 million (compared to HK$7.7 million
in 2006). As a result, profit attributable to shareholders dropped by 8%
compared with 2006 and basic earnings per share also dropped by the
same 8% to HK cents 9.8.

Dividend

You will recall that | said in the 2006 Annual Report that protecting the
interests of our investors is our top priority. Our proposal for dividend
payment for 2007 as follows is made with that in mind.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK cents 6.18
per share. This, together with the HK cents 3.61 per share interim paid
earlier, the total dividend payout for 2007 will be HK cents 9.79 (or a total of
HK$76.2 million), and thus representing a payout ratio of 100%.

HEAR -

AANERZEZG((EFZSDE2HEHRETES
ERARITEZR] [ARRDEBE_FTTLHF
T_A=T - HLEFEESAARRREEENEE
76,200,000 7T °

#EE FI| A7 15 120,100,000 7T © SAT + DG A A Bl
ENEHISE ZEREK R LR AR (Digital Trade
and Transportation Network Limited * [DTTNCol) J /&5
1B E B 2400000 T(R - FNEY
7,700,000t E) « Eitt - BEREGEENR -TTREF
TP 8% M@ MREARBFI IR T 8% £ 9.8l -

Hﬁ z%\

—IARARZBENEERA - REREEN S /AR
RAMERER - BERI - ARFEFRN —FFTL
FHBESMT -

EERBIREKRIRET6.1881 - BRI 2R
B EIRE B BAR3.61E Il BT ERBEN R AL
59.798 L (S4BT 76,200,000 7C) » IRB LR A
100% °




Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

Review

Tradelink’s core business of providing Government Electronic Trading
Services (“GETS”) remained strong and stable in 2007. Heeding the
growing need of its customers to connect with partners and suppliers in the
Mainland, the Company has therefore been active in identifying potential
business opportunities in the Mainland. To facilitate the endeavour, the
Company has opened a small office in Beijing in early 2008. The office will
be responsible for initiating early dialogues on co-operation with potential
partners.

The Digital Trade and Transportation Network (“DTTN”) platform has
continued to make progress. Since it is still in market development stage
requiring major effort and expenses to secure customers, its loss has
widened to HK$43.2 million, when compared with 2006. However, we
believe 2008 will be an important year in the development of DTTN, as
we strive to reach the critical mass when the efforts required to recruit
and activate DTTN customers will be significantly reduced, we are actively
pursuing opportunities in the Mainland that could significantly augment the
usage of DTTN.

Prospects

While the general economic outlook for 2008 is unclear at this stage, taking
into consideration of the nature of Tradelink’s business, we expect the
Company to continue to report strong performance. We see opportunities for
us to provide more value adding services for our Tradelink customers.

On 14 March 2008, the Government issued a tender for the design and
implementation of the Road Cargo System (“ROCARS”) of the Customs
and Excise Department. The services is designed to facilitate the movement
of goods across land border checkpoints between Hong Kong and the
Mainland through the capturing of advance cargo information. We are
intending to bid for this tender. If Tradelink wins the bid, the service will be
a logical adjunct to the suite of Government services it is already providing.

=1 &

R-FTLF  BHANROES--RRBNETES
AR%S ([GETS) MR HRE - ENEZHBEFHER
waERH RFEENBERSES  ARREL—&
BRSHRAMEERE - [t ARFER-_FTNF
FNELRFARNERLE  AERBEREBRHEE
MR HISIEE -

HI5E 5B M 4845 Z 45 (Digital Trade and Transportation
Network * [DTTN]) F & T ETEE - BhRNEEER
TSAEEBEMBERARERNIREAURSERS - 1
i< BER - BT RFHEAEE 43,200,000 © A
i BPEE  ZEEN\FHEAREDTIINERAZEEN
—F - AREMBIRELMARBEDTIN » EEE
AR - TRARBEZAYD  BRERMEBEREX
P S SRERZE IR ANEE AR DTTN B8 o

Al

HA—TT)\FRBKERZEANDTARN - EEED
BHBEBME - RPEAAARASSHEFLER
B AT SEEICERRNAE BT PRMELDR
BRABESE REE -

RZZZENF=A+MA - BIFHESS 2 Road
Cargo System ([ROCARS ) I B Z & & & 1T A F 18
1o ZRBTHEBBLREEYAE - RESERAK
2 EBRRREUHEREMNRD - ZMIAEERE - WE
SBENHIE - AARABBREARE T - XEER

=
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

A Ao,

Some time in 2008, the Government will also be calling for tenders for the
provisions of GETS services from 2010 onward. Tradelink is confident of
securing renewal of the GETS licence it holds now.

On the DTTN front, we will continue exert our best effort in moving it forward.
If we are successful in bringing to fruition some of the discussions in relation
to the use of DTTN in China, we are optimistic about the success of DTTN.

Relative to the size of its business, the Company has a sizeable cash reserve.
With interest rates coming down, the Company will step up its efforts in
finding and making business investments that can allow us to improve the
returns from our cash reserves.

All in all, we believe 2008 will be a year that can allow us to build a solid
foundation to take Tradelink and DTTN forward in strides.

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, s.B.s., J.p.
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2008

BTN ST\ FEEHRARHRE T —FFH
WRIRHEOGETS IR - EZBA R LKEERANL @ &
BEBR RS ARGETSRTAIRE - ARG ADE AR ©

DTTN S * BFAGHE T2 E S E
EITBERIERRE R DTTN Y E TREEAERS
fI%I DTTN HAK I B B IS 4R E -

# o fWIE
A H

MEXBREMNS - AREHAREVENRSRHE
BEEMETE - ARRKIMEMELIEHEBRE - 1
AL EMFARS RS HEDR
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Management Discussion
and Analysis

BEEER W R DA

Tradelink is dedicated to be

“the most influential e-commerce
service provider” and endeavours
to add value to the trading process
in and outside of Hong Kong.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited 2 SEEFESHERAT

BIBAERG | RAR
EINETEZRBHE
BlHRE - BRSO
RBEBNEGINETEE
ZiREEE -



OurDedication
)

Business Review 01|

The Group’s business performances during the year are highlighted as REBEHR  AREBNEKEEBRERIE

follows:

Tradelink E58

. Tradelink’s core business of providing front-end GETS services . RZZEALF - B 5 MMIRMHGETSAREAIZ 05
remained stable and strong in 2007. Its six GETS services continued BRIRFERTARY - HATRMERFTE/NIEGETS
to command market share of over 90% each. BR7% - HEETE(H90% LA ERTIGEE R -

e As mentioned in the interim report, since the Government of the . REPHEBREML - AR EARENEEF

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of BENTREBRF(BFNR_ZEZLF A

China (the “Government”) introduced the new fee structure for paper Z+F H AR 47 A B 52 5 2 (Textiles Trader

Textiles Trader Registration Scheme (“TTRS”) notification on 25 June Registration Scheme * [TTRS ) 2 7 19 4% 5k Ug &

2007, there has been a substantial growth in the usage of Tradelink’s & - BSERENTTRSE FAREH A28

electronic TTRS service due to a saving of HK$3.80 per notification. BARBER - WYBEREFFRERTTRSE FAR

The business recorded a 78% growth in 2007 compared with 2006. T REARRERL A EE 380 R
TTLF - EHBNTTRSEBR -_TTAFER
78%

—-



Management Discussion and Analysis

Regarding the current GETS licence, as confirmed with the
Government on 13 July 2007, it has been extended by one year to the
end of 2009. The Government is expected to issue a tender for the
post-2009 GETS licence in the first half of 2008 and Tradelink intends
to submit a proposal when the tender is issued.

As for its non-GETS services, following the deployment of the Trader
Documentation Service (“TDS”) to a large German mail order house
to facilitate supply chain management by the Company, Tradelink
has begun to provide a similar service to one of the world’s largest
semiconductor manufacturers with operations in more than 30
countries. The service offered by Tradelink using interconnection
with DTTN will enable the manufacturer to connect with its freight
forwarders in Hong Kong and also to exchange electronically various
trade and shipping documents with its suppliers. The service,
successfully rolled out in Hong Kong for the client, will be extended to
cover the client’s offices in Tianjin, Singapore and Malaysia.

On payment services, Tradelink is currently working with a renowned
electronic payments network and one of the world’s largest banking
and financial services organisation on developing an electronic credit
card payment solution for the business community, with initial focus
on the freight forwarding industry. The solution will connect with
DTTN to provide a one-stop trade document exchange and credit
card payment solution to forwarders and their shippers.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited Z5REFES5RAA

ARIGETSIH ARSI, & - RBEBHA =T
TLELATS AT RAMENFRGITR
—EE-FTAEE - BHEAER -2 /\F
i¥¢Ef§$n¢QMQB%V”ﬁ%F g
AR EERE BB E -

BRAFEGETSIRB T E - BEEZ BN REE—
RRBEF A AN MHEEERERLEE SRR
% (Trader Documentation Service - [TDS )iz - &
ZiBFEBEDTIN Ay - # i%%ﬁ?ﬁ*
HEERLER Z —HIA R (RBB30EBIREE) IR
AR ARTS o % BLER ME A BB R GE
PR - R RA EEREMAEF A RBRS
BE 5 REH XM o BRI EBHELZIERS
& ZARRIEREZEREE  BREGBEER
BRZE - FINE R RATHER

:Kt\\%%ﬁl, ki HEZBAILE-—FKERE
BEBEMERSERRITLERRBARZ —6
f’Eﬁ-ﬂ?’é FAXETERRAELR  UHIF
HEERITE - AT RBERZDTIN  BEK
ERRENEARK-UEANE S ZI]RIE
RRBEESZE -



Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE T Mo

DTTNCo HIRE B EWMEER A (Digital Trade and
Transportation Network Limited * [DTTNCo )

. DTTNCo'’s business gained momentum and grew steadily in 2007. . RZZEZE+HF  DTTNCoMEE T HER - Wk

SiEEREE -

DTTN services currently have a total of around 3,600 registered
customers including those recruited through service providers
connected to DTTN, compared to around 500 registered customers in
early 2007.

One of DTTNCO’s current strategic focuses is to develop partnership
arrangement with key international service providers in the Business-
to-Business supply chain arena. At the same time DTTNCo is also
developing partnerships in the Mainland China, Singapore, Australia,
the Netherlands and Mexico on pilot projects for customers in Hong
Kong and their overseas trading partners to exchange and process
trade documents on local DTTN-like platforms.

In Hong Kong, DTTNCo has started to explore interconnection
opportunities with public and government organisations. Initial
meetings were held with several organisations and government
departments or other customers.

RZZZLF - DTINRISIREHE A L) 3,600 B &
AR W EFEHREEDTTNEE RIS E
BFTHBENERS  M_EZELFEIKNAES00%8
BHEP -

IWKEDTINCOR H A — B BRI E - BRI
Y1753 (B2B) AU i $8 B 150 £ T 9 B R AR 75 2t
FERG L R MRA(R o REF - DTTNCoIR [EEirp
B - #AN - RN - TR R BETHRBAETT
FIFEERMAIGIER - FiRgINEEDTTN B
UBTa  BEASFELGINEHBHERE
B DUBITSUE R R BRIRH) THE -

SRR ER AT - DTTNCo O FfAE A HHKE
R BT EBPE 3T B MRS E AT AT °DTTNCo 2
BRAMEETY SR AREEDTINEE
AT BB P sk H s P AR R S - DMESTHERZ
Ha o




Management Discussion and Analysis
BB Mo

Development of seven DTTN-enabled front-end software modules
funded by the Government was completed in November 2007.
These government-funded modules are distributed free of charge
to SMEs to promote the use of e-business and tools such as DTTN
in the SME community. DTTNCo commenced a joint marketing
campaign with relevant parties and trade associations to promote
the free front-end software modules in December 2007. The
campaign will continue into 2008.

DTTNCo is also working closely with the Hong Kong Productivity
Council in implementing another government sponsored project,
which entails developing and conducting a series of seminars
and training workshops for the IT industry and SME community
on the use of DTTN service. These seminars and workshops will
continue to be conducted regularly in 2008.

Digi-Sign

Digi-Sign has further strengthened its presence in the banking sector.
A local bank has appointed Digi-Sign as the service provider to issue
digital certificates to the local and overseas corporate customers of
its sister banks in Hong Kong. With Digi-Sign’s certificates, customers
can now conduct corporate e-banking transactions with the banks
with added security.

In conjunction with relevant authorities and industrial stakeholders,
Digi-Sign is also in the process of exploring opportunities in the China
market.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited Z3EEFZHERAT

M EE BB DTTN AT e A RE R
ZTETEF+— ARKAE - BELRBNERE
BB A5 - BEEBBDTINS B /N2 &
REFEE - WEMMEBEALZADITNAR
®eB_ZTHFE+—F#  DITNCoEBRA
BATRESHE#ET ERNTIBHETE -
EESERBRISET A ROER - BRES

HHSEE—TT)\F o

DTTNCoIR FEBFEBEENREREHREE -
PR —BRNENNIEE « AEMRRITERSP
NEERER - ZIIEEDTIN RBEOH TS K&
SRl TIED o B g R TEH KR ZTT N\
FEHAERIT -

EFFE R AR AT (Digi-Sign Certification
Services Limited + [ Digi-Sign ])

Digi-Sign i — 2 ZEENIRITEFMEEN AR -
—RAMIRTTE E (T Digi-Sign ARISHER - 5
HEBO B RIRTTA A OGN R P EITE
WEE - BREDG-SgnMHHFE  BRFRAR
P ERITHEITHES FIRITRS °

FREABETHBIIRENNEEALTAE
Digi-Sign 3% 1E F 8 AR B T 35 ) i 4 o



Management Discussion and Analysis

EIEE R am M

Financial Review

In 2007, the Company had a customer base of more than 54,000. Turnover
for the year was HK$245.1 million, HK$3.2 million less than the HK$248.3
million in 2006. Half of the drop in revenue was caused by the shrinkage of
market size of the Certificate of Origin (“CO”) and Production Notification
(“PN”) services. Other Government services remained stable.

A modest increase in salaries was awarded to staff in 2007. Staff costs
incurred were HK$79.5 million, higher than in 2006 by HK$1.6 million.
Operating expenses (excluding depreciation) incurred during the year was
stable at HK$44.6 million against HK$44.5 million in 2006.

Depreciation charges for the year of 2007 amounted to HK$11.1 million,
HK$3.2 million lower than the amount of HK$14.3 million in 2006.

Profit from operations for the year was HK$120.1 million, a slight increase of
HK$0.8 million over the amount in 2006.

For the year, the share of loss of DTTNCo was HK$24.0 million, HK$16.3
million higher than the HK$7.7 million in 2006. The increase was the result
of DTTNCo in commercial operation for the full year versus the same for only
three months in 2006.

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for year ended
31 December 2007 was HK$76.2 million, HK$7.0 million lower than the
HK$83.2 million in 2006.

Basic earnings per ordinary share for 2007 were HK cents 9.8 as compared
to HK cents 10.7 in 2006.

B 75 [0

RZZEZTLE  ARAHAABL4000E8EF « KREFE
&R R 245,100,00070 - R T NFHBE
248,300,0007T + TB&B#3,200,0007T ° k& 250 T %
B E A —2 - T 5AEE # SR B (Certificate of Origin
[COJ) K4 E 3@ AZE (Production Notification + [PN ) &9
TSR RME N B - EAh B RIS IRISTETE o

R_ZETLF EENHSMM LT FIEENES
FX 7R & 78 79,500,000 7T © B = T TN F G B
1,600,0007C - FRNATEAMNEERSZ (TRENTE)
B 44,600,000 7T T BT NFH|ABE
44,500,000 7 °

ZEEFHITE ABE11,100,0007T - B EENF
K78 14,300,000 7T3E 4> 3,200,000 T °

R AR F D DTTNCo &) &5 18 & 78 1 24,000,000
T F—%Eﬁﬁim;%ﬁﬁﬁoooow_zibu;%ﬁ%
16,300,000 7T ° *ﬁ%ﬁﬂfPaEEEEADTTNEA S
FREITEFELE TRFAUREE=MEA -

(ETTHE+ A=+ —HILFE  AQRRER
B A H M AE76,200,0007T * BB/ NERH
F 7 # 83,200,000 JTiE A7 #E 7,000,000 7T °

BERBF R8N - =F

—ETLEFHNERER
TRFHA10.7 B4 o




Management Discussion and Analysis
BB Mo

Liquidity and Financial Position

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had a total cash and bank deposits of
HK$374.7 million (2006: HK$335.6 million). The net assets of the Group
amounted to HK$339.8 million (2006: HK$329.2 million).

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had no borrowings.

Capital and Reserves

As at 31 December 2007, the capital and reserves attributable to the
ordinary equity shareholders were HK$339.8 million, which was HK$10.6
million more than the amount of HK$329.2 million at the end of 2006.

Segment Reporting

No segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business and
geographical segments. Throughout the year, the Group has been operating
principally in a single business and geographical segment, i.e. the operation
of electronic trading services in Hong Kong.

Charge on Assets and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2007, the Group held two guarantees from The
Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited in the aggregate
amount of HK$2.1 million as guarantee to the Government for the due
performance as stated in the GETS Agreements. The guarantee line facility
was secured by a charge over deposit in the amount of HK$2.1 million. The
facility is subject to review on an annual basis.

The Group did not have any other charges on assets.

The Group has provided a bank guarantee amounted to HK$1.2 million,
in relation to a revolving credit facility granted to KAZ Computer Services
Hongkong Limited (“KAZ Hong Kong”), an associate of the Group. The
guarantee is a continuing security and shall not be released or discharged
until the expiration of six months after the payment, discharge or satisfaction
in full of the guaranteed liability.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited B ZBEFESHERAR]

REBESEIHRR
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE T Mo

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2007, the Group employed a work force of 245 (2006:
237) stationed in Hong Kong. The related staff costs for the year totaled
HK$79.5 million (2006: HK$77.9 million).

The Group remunerates all employees based on market practices and salary
levels. In addition to salaries, it provides staff benefits including medical
insurance and contribution to the mandatory provident fund. To motivate
and reward employees at all levels to achieve the Group’s profit target,
the Group has established a discretionary performance bonus scheme
under which it may decide to pay special performance bonuses to staff for
exceptional performance and with reference to the financial performance of
the Group. The Group also operates two employee share option schemes to
motivate employees in delivering good performance.

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates and
Related Hedges

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had no foreign exchange exposure and
related hedges.

BEREFMWEE

HE_ZTLHE+_-_A=1+—0 AEENEEEAH
B2A5 AN(ZTTRF 1237 N) c FiBREENESTL
£ - FN - BRIEEBKAS HEE 79,500,000 7T (= F
TNEE - #677,900,0007T) ©

REEFNBER TR B REFHH - 19U EHMKF
HEE o BREFBASN - ARETRHESREN - BFEEE
R Ko AR MR - RSB R EZBAA R R
BENAEENGEN B R - ARECHIERITERIEA
FTE - MISARBARAEENERVBRAIRE - K
SEEHMIAREBEOES S - LB B THIK
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B =R B R AARE T T RER
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Directors and Senior Management
EENEREE

Directors

Chairman and Non-executive Director

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P., aged 65, was appointed a Director on 19
September 2000. He is also our Chairman. He holds a Bachelor's degree
in Electrical Engineering from the Imperial College, London, the United
Kingdom and a Doctorate from Brown University, the United States. He
joined Textile Alliance Limited (TAL) in Hong Kong in 1973 and in 1983,
was appointed Managing Director of TAL Apparel Limited, which currently
employs over 20,000 employees. He has over 30 years’ experience in the
textile and garment industry. He is actively involved in a number of trade
organisations in Hong Kong. He was a Director of The Link Management
Limited, and was a Director of Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation. He was
the Chairman of the Innovation & Technology Fund (“Textiles Projects”)
Vetting Committee and is currently the Honorary Chairman of the Hong
Kong Garment Manufacturer's Association, as well as Chairman of Textile
Council of Hong Kong Ltd. He is also a council member of The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and the Vocational Training Council. He was named
in the Queen’s birthday honours list as an Officer of the British Empire
(“OBE”) in 1996. He was appointed a Justice of Peace (“J.P.”) in 1997 and
was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star (“S.B.S.”) at the Fourth Anniversary of
the Establishment of the HKSAR in 2001.

Executive Directors
Mr. YUE Kwok Hung, Justin, aged 66, was appointed a Director on 1

August 1996. He has also been our Chief Executive Officer since 1996.
He was a Director of Digital Trade and Transportation Network Limited,
an associate of the Company until 31 December 2007. Mr. YUE has over
30 years’ experience in the trade and commerce industry. Prior to joining
us, he had worked at the executive level both in the Government and the
local trading community. He joined the Government in 1968 in what was
then the Commerce & Industry Department and progressed to become
Deputy Commissioner of Trade, Industry and Customs in 1979. In 1983,
he moved to the Transport Branch of the Government Secretariat. He left
the Government in 1985 to join the private sector as a Senior Executive of
Winner Garments Ltd. He is active in a number of trade associations and
advisory bodies including the Federation of Hong Kong Industries Group,
Trade & Industry Advisory Board, Hong Kong Logistics Development
Council, Hong Kong Garment Manufacturers Association and Textile
Council. He is also an Independent Non-executive Director of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited and Dah Sing Life Assurances Company Limited.
He graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a First Class Bachelor
of Arts Honours degree in 1965.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited B ZBEFESHERAR]
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Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEE

Ms. NARDI Kar Wai, Agnes aged 52, was appointed a Director on 27
November 2007. She joined the Company as the Deputy Chief Executive
Officer on 1 November 2007. Ms. NARDI held various senior management
positions in Hutchison Telecom Group before joining the Company.
She once served as an Executive Director and later an Alternate Non-
Executive Director of Hutchison Telecommunications International Limited,
a company publicly listed in both Hong Kong and the United States.
Ms. NARDI received her Bachelor's Degree in Social Sciences from The
University of Hong Kong. Amongst her other qualifications, she is a member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors, The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, CPA Australia and Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (UK).

Ms. NARDI was appointed on 16 November 2007 as a Director of the Digital
Trade and Transportation Network Limited (DTTNCo), an associate of the
Company. She has also been appointed as a member of the Hong Kong
Logistics Development Council from 1 January 2008.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAK Hubert, aged 46, was appointed a Director on 21 October 2002.
He joined Capital Strategic Investment Limited as its Group Chief Operating
Officer in April 2007 and became an Executive Director in June 2007.
He was previously an Executive Director of Pacific Century Premium
Developments Limited and was also the Company Secretary and Director
of Mergers and Acquisitions of PCCW Limited until February, 2007. Prior to
joining the Pacific Century group in 1999, he has worked for a number of
international investment banks in Hong Kong and has more than 10 years’
experience in corporate finance transactions in the region. He is a graduate
of the University of Wales (now known as Cardiff University) in the United
Kingdom and holds a Master of Business Administration degree and a
Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering.
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Directors and Senior Management
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Dr. CHEUNG Yiu Sing, aged 56, was appointed a Director on 23 March 2004.
He is the Senior Director-Certification of the Hong Kong General Chamber
of Commerce. He joined the Chamber in 1990 and worked in various
areas including international business, industrial affairs, corporate affairs,
membership and human resources and certification services. His current
job portfolio covers the area of trade document certification and finances.
He was born in Hong Kong and graduated from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Science in mathematics. He then studied
in France and obtained a Doctorate degree in mathematics from Paris
University VII. He had served as a member on the China Studies Course
Advisory Committee of the Baptist University and the Advisory Board for the
Department of Social Science of Lingnan University.

Mr. LAU Kam Kuen, David, aged 41, was appointed a Director on 7 March
2005. Mr. LAU joined the Hong Kong Government as an Administrative
Officer in 1992. He has since served in various positions within the
Government, including as Assistant Commissioner of the London Economic
and Trade Office, Principal Assistant Secretary for the Environment and
Food, and Administrative Assistant to the Secretary for Health, Welfare and
Food. He joined the Financial Services and Treasury Bureau in March 2005
as Principal Assistant Secretary (Investments). His responsibilities include
financial policy for public corporations, evaluation of the financial aspects
of corporatisation, privatisation and infrastructure-related project proposals,
and the management of the Government’s Capital Investment Fund and the
Loan Fund. He has over 10 years’ experience in public sector administration
and management. Mr. LAU obtained a Bachelor of Science degree and a
Master of Arts degree from King's College, University of London.

Mr. LO Sze Wai, Albert, aged 58, was appointed a Director on 13 May 2005.
Having joined Cathay Pacific Airways Limited in 1993, Mr. LO was the
Manager for Cargo Hub Operations before taking up his current position
as Manager for Cargo Services, with responsibility for the system-wide
cargo operations. He is also the Chairman of Carrier Liaison Group, which
is a forum primarily consisting of airlines and ground handling agents
at the Hong Kong International Airport and dealing with matters related
to air cargo, mail, courier and express cargo handling. Prior to joining
Cathay Pacific Airways Limited, Mr. LO was involved in cargo operations
at Pan American World Airways and United Airlines respectively before
embarking on freight forwarding operations at Benson Air and Sea Cargo,
NAF Airfreight, Danzas and Infolink in Hong Kong and Canada respectively.
Mr. LO has over 35 years’ experience in the cargo and freight forwarding
industry.
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Directors and Senior Management
EERRREIEE

Mr. WEBB Lawrence, aged 49, was appointed a Director on 11 May 2007.
Mr. WEBB is responsible for HSBC’s Trade Services and Supply Chain
business globally, a role which he has undertaken since April 2007. Prior
to this, he was responsible for HSBC's payments and cash management
activities across 21 countries and territories throughout the Asia-Pacific
region. He joined HSBC in 1981 and has worked in various countries
and territories throughout the Middle East and Asia Pacific, undertaking
various roles in transaction banking, systems development, relationship
management and strategic planning. Mr. WEBB holds a bachelor degree
in management sciences from the University of Manchester and is an
Associate of the Chartered Institute of Bankers.

Mr. YING Tze Man, Kenneth, aged 52, was appointed a Director on 16
September 1996. He is an Executive Director of Hongkong International
Terminals Limited. He is responsible for the financial matters of Hutchison
Ports’ business units in South China. He is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and also a fellow member of the
Chartered Association of Certified Accounts, the United Kingdom. Before
joining Hongkong International Terminal Limited, he was the Finance
Director of Hong Kong-listed Fairwood Holdings Limited. He has more than
10 years’ experience in the logistics sector and over 15 years’ experience in
accounting, finance and administration.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy, aged 57, was appointed a Director on 11 May
2007. He has over 20 years of experience in financial advisory, taxation
and management. He was a partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers and
retired in June 2005. In October 2005, he joined a professional consulting
firm, Russell Bedford Hong Kong Limited, as Director-Tax & Business
Advisory. Mr. Chung is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Taxation Institution of Hong Kong and the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA). He was the President of the
Hong Kong branch of ACCA for the year 2005/06. He is currently also an
Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman of the audit committee
of Fittec International Group Limited and Lee Kee Holdings Limited, both
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, aged 47 was appointed a Director on 13 May 2005.
Mr. HO is the Executive Director of the Hong Kong Shippers’ Council. He
has over 20 years’ experience in the Shipping and Logistics industry. As
he now shapes the thrust of the Shippers’ Council mandate as the voice
of the Hong Kong shippers, he has considerable experience in aspects
of trade and transport of goods. Prior to the Shippers’ Council, he was
Deputy Managing Director of Swire Shipping Agencies and Taikoo Maritime
Services Ltd, gaining experience in liner shipping, warehousing and
distribution, freight forwarding, container haulage, mid-stream operations,
China feeders, transport and logistics services. Mr. HO is a member of
the Port Development Advisory Group of the Port Development Council,
the Port Operations Committee, the Logistics Industry Training Advisory
Committee, and the Transport & Shipping Committee of the Hong Kong
General Chamber of Commerce. He is heavily involved in various working
groups of the LOGSCOUNCIL. He was appointed as the Chairman of
Logistic Committee of the Chartered Institute of Transport and Logistics of
Hong Kong for 2003-2004, a member of the Dangerous Goods Standing
Committee for several years and Chairman of the Hong Kong Liner Shipping
Association for 1993-1995. He is the current Vice Chairman of Hong Kong
Logistic Management Staff Association, Council Member of the Chartered
Institute of Logistics & Transport in Hong Kong, Fellow of the Chartered
Institute of Marketing (Hong Kong), and Advisor to the Chamber of the Hong
Kong Logistics Industry and Shenzhen Ports & Harbour Association.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited B ZBEFESHERAR]
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Directors and Senior Management
EERRREIEE

Dr. WONG Tin Yau, Kelvin, aged 47, was appointed a Director on 13 May
2005. He is an Executive Director, Deputy Managing Director and Chairman
of the Corporate Governance Committee and member of the Executive
Committee of COSCO Pacific Limited. Dr. WONG is a Deputy Chairman,
Chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee and fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, Chairman and council member of
the Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra Limited, a member of the China Trade
Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council, a
member of the Auditing and Assurance Standards Committee of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the OECD/
World Bank Asian Corporate Governance Roundtable, a member of Main
Board and GEM Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and a member of The Board of Review (Inland Revenue Ordinance).
He obtained his Master of Business Administration degree from Andrews
University in Michigan, the USA in 1992 and his Doctor of Business
Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2007. He is
an associate member of the Chartered Institute of Bankers, a member of
the Hong Kong Securities Institute, a member of the Chartered Institute of
Marketing and a member of the National Investor Relations Institute in the
USA. He has more than 23 years of working experience in management,
banking and securities industries. Currently, Dr. WONG is an Independent
Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee of the
Company, an Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman of the
Audit Committee of China Metal International Holdings Inc., an Independent
Non-executive Director of CIG Yangtze Ports PLC, and an Independent
Non-executive Director of I.T. Limited, all of these companies are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Dr. WONG held various senior
positions in several listed companies in Hong Kong before he joined COSCO
Pacific Limited in July 1996. He is responsible for the overall management,
strategic planning, financial management, and investor relations of COSCO
Pacific Limited.
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Directors and Senior Management
EERERERE

Mr. YUEN Kam Ho, George, aged 63, was appointed a Director on 28
November 2006. He holds a Bachelor's Degree (Honours) in Economics
and Political Science from the University of Hong Kong. He attended post-
graduate studies in Harvard Graduate School of Business in 1974, Oxford
University in 1982 to 1983 and INSEAD (European Graduate School for
Business Administration) in 1995. In 2003, Harvard University Kennedy
School of Government admitted Mr. YUEN to its Leadership Program. In
February 2006, Mr. YUEN was granted a Fellowship for Non-profit Leaders
by Centre for Social Innovation of Stanford University. Mr. YUEN has
extensive experience and connections both locally and overseas particularly
in governmental, business and media sectors. In 2003, he was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China (Asia) Ltd. and as a member of the Pearl River Delta Panel
of the Central Policy Unit of the HKSAR Government. On 20 March 2007,
Mr. YUEN was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of
LeRoi Holdings Ltd. Mr. YUEN had been Chief Executive of the Better
Hong Kong Foundation for nine years since September 1997. Prior to
joining the Foundation, Mr. YUEN had acted as Deputy Director-General
in the Information Services Department of Hong Kong Government. Before
his civil service career, Mr. YUEN held management positions in Nestles
(Hong Kong) and Sterling Drugs (International) Inc. He is the founder
director of the “HK Society For the Aged”. He is a Member of the Chinese
People’s Palitical Consultative Conference of Guangxi Autonomous Region
of China; Special Advisor of China National Committee for Pacific Economic
Co-operation (China, PECC). Advisor of the Institute of Finance & Trade
Economics of the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences; Advisor of the
Shanghai Academy of Social Sciences of China; and Advisor of the Board
of International Investment of Guangzhou Municipality of China. In October
2006, Mr. YUEN was invited to join the Consultative Committee for the
Center on China’s Transnational Relations of the Hong Kong University of
Science & Technology. Mr. YUEN is also a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute
of Directors.
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Directors and Senior Management
EERRREIEE

Senior Management

Ms. CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily, aged 51, is our Chief Operations Officer and
is responsible for the management of our activities in the areas of marketing
and sales, customer services, training and service centre. Since joining us
in 1992, she has gained over 15 years of experience in the e-commerce
industry. Prior to joining us, she worked in the Government Secretariat of
the Hong Kong Government for over 11 years. She graduated from The
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Science degree and a Master of
Science degree in Engineering.

Mr. LI Fuk Kuen, Wilfred, aged 57, is our Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary. As the Company’s Chief Financial Officer, Mr. LI is
responsible for all our financial management activities including financial
accounting and reporting, treasury, budgeting, financial planning and
control. He has over 30 years’ experience in finance and accounting.
Prior to joining us in 1997, he held the post of Senior Manager in the
Finance Division of Hong Kong Telecommunications Limited. He holds a
Master’s degree in Business Administration, a Master of Science degree in
Logistics and a Master of Science degree in Finance. He is a member of the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants in the United Kingdom and
is also a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. YUEN Kam Ming, Alfred, aged 45, our Chief Technology Officer, is in
charge of all our technical service activities. He has more than 20 years’
experience in the industry of information technology, and has been with
us since 1993. Mr. YUEN graduated from the Simon Fraser University of
Vancouver, B.C., Canada, with an honours degree in Computing Science in
1986. He then spent his early stage of career development in The Hongkong
and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited.

Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew, aged 38, is our Chief Development
Officer. He joined Digi-Sign, our subsidiary, in 2002. He has over 13 years’
experience in IT related business. He was involved as a technical specialist
in a consultancy proposal on the setting up of a Public Key Infrastructure
(“PKI”) by the Hong Kong Government. He holds a Master of Commerce
in Information Systems from the University of New South Wales, a Master
of Engineering from the University of Sydney, a Bachelor of Engineering
with Honors in Electrical Engineering from the University of Sydney and a
Bachelor of Science from the University of Sydney. Prior to joining us, he
was a Manager of Professional Services in Baltimore Technologies Limited.
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Corporate Governance
Report
TEERBESE

Tradelink has always put great
effort to ensure a high standard
of corporate governance

practices.

The Company has always committed to a high standard of corporate
governance practices. Great effort has been made to comply with the
provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“SEHK").
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ransparency
FEHHE S

Internal Controls & Risk Management

The Board of Directors and Management have always emphasised the
need to maintain a sound and effective system of internal control and risk
management as a means to safeguard shareholders’ investment and the
Company’s assets.

As part of the on-going process, the Company has during the year continued
to assess its internal control system with reference to the COSO (The
Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission, 1994)
internal control framework. Efforts were made to assess the Company’s
internal control system against the five elements of control environment,
risk assessment, control activities, communication and monitoring. In
addition, the Company has also carried out a high-level risk assessment
review. The review was conducted in the form of a self-risk assessment
process completed by relevant department heads supplemented by
some high-level and independent risk control tests conducted by the
Company’s Internal Audit Department. This assessment review covered the
Company’s operations in Hong Kong and its associated key processes and
sub-processes. These process and sub-processes could be categorised
into strategic management, core business processes and resource
management.
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Corporate Governance Report
PERERAWMES

Based on the results of the above assessment and review, the Board is
satisfied that the internal control and risk management system of the
Company is both adequate and effective. The Company will continue to
place great emphasis on the need for good corporate governance and an
effective internal control and risk management system in the years to come.

Board of Directors

The Company is led and controlled through the Board of Directors, which is
constituted by 2 Executive Directors, 7 Non-executive Directors, including
the Chairman of the Board, and 4 Independent Non-executive Directors.
The 4 Independent Non-executive Directors have all confirmed in writing to
the Company that they meet all the guidelines for assessing independence
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board oversees the overall management and operations of the
Company. Major responsibilities include approving the Company’s overall
business, financial and technical strategies, setting key performance
targets, approving budgets and major expenditures, supervising and
scrutinising the performance of management.

There is no service contract between the Company and the Non-executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors. They have no fixed
term of service with the Company but will be subject to rotational retirement
and re-election requirement at annual general meetings pursuant to Article
100 of the Articles of Association of the Company. Pursuant to that Article,
about one half of the Directors shall retire but may be eligible for re-election
at each annual general meeting.

The Board has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules and the Directors have fully complied with it.

The emolument payable to Directors is determined by the Board with
reference to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.
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CEERAREE

Meetings =
Pursuant to relevant provisions of the Articles of the Company, the Board BEAAREERHMEBIEY  EF2EGFEAEITK
meets regularly for at least four times a year, i.e. at approximately quarterly FHEE  TAARNESERET X 1IN EESNSIE
intervals. In addition, special meetings of the Board will be convened if the FEEARERNgE RIS LFREFH  EFg6H
situation requires so. During the calendar year of 2007, the Board convened BRENRGH  EEMHERIROT ¢
a total of six times and the attendance of the Directors are tabulated as
follows:
Number of meetings
held while Number of
being a director meetings
IREZR attended
Name i BRNEERE HESBXH
Chairman E
Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, s.B.S., J.P. ZTyEE T sBS, J.P. 6 6
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. CHAK Hubert 2t 6 5
Dr. CHEUNG Yiu Sing SRR IE 6 6
Mr. LAU Kam Kuen, David ReRESE 6 4
Mr. LO Sze Wai, Albert BT AE 6 6
Mr. WEBB Lawrence WEBB Lawrence 5t 4 4 3
(appointed on 11/5/2007) (R-FFLF7H+—HEZ)
Mr. YING Tze Man, Kenneth EF Ak 6 3
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYKHITES
Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy BB S 4 4
(appointed on 11/5/2007) (R=ZFELFRA+—HEZE)
Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny (EVE=SHS 6 6
Dr. WONG Tin Yau, Kelvin EARMEL 6 5
Mr. YUEN Kam Ho, George REERE 6 6
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. YUE Kwok Hung, Justin B S A 6 6
(Chief Executive Officer) (7TB#3)
Ms. NARDI Kar Wai, Agnes EREL L 1 1
(Deputy Chief Executive Officer) (BT B #42%)
(appointed on 27/11/2007) (R=FFLFF—HAZF+EHEZF)
Directors resigned during 2007 —ZTLFEBEINES
Mr. KO Kai Wai, Kelvin SR 2 2
(resigned on 25/6/2007) (R=ZFELFNHZ+HHAFHE)
Mr. CURRIE Alistair CURRIE Alistair %t 4= 2 0
(resigned on 30/3/2007) (R-ZFZF+F=H=+HFT)
Mr. NG Chik Sum, Jackson REREE 2 2
(resigned on 11/5/2007) (RZFF+LFHA+—HEE)
Ms. CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily 2 by equm 2 2

(appointed on 9/7/2007 and
resigned on 27/11/2007)

(K- EFLEANABRELERR
—EFLFF AT ARLE)
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Directors’ and Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Accounts

The management provides the explanation and information to the Board to
facilitate its informed assessment of the Group’s financial and other matters
put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group.
Meanwhile, the Directors are responsible for ensuring that appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently; and that
judgments and estimates made are prudent and reasonable. In preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007, the
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
applicable laws were complied with.

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. The Board has prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of external auditors of the Group are disclosed
in the “Report of the Auditors”.
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Committees of the Board

The Board has established the following committees: the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee consists of 4 Non-executive Directors; 3 of whom are

Independent Non-executive Directors.

. Dr. WONG Tin Yau, Kelvin (Chairman)

. Mr. CHAK Hubert

. Mr. YUEN Kam Ho, George

. Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy (appointed on 25 June 2007)

The Audit Committee oversees the overall financial reporting process as
well as the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.
In addition, it is responsible for making recommendations to the Board for
the appointment, reappointment or removal of the external auditor. It also
reviews and monitors the external auditor’s independence and objectivity as
well as the effectiveness of the audit process to make sure that it is in full
compliance with applicable standards.

Report of Audit Committee
In 2007, the Audit Committee met four times. In addition to reviewing and

approving the various audit plans and audit reports prepared by the Internal
Audit Department of the Company, it also reviewed the interim and financial
reports of the Company.
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Committees of the Board (continued)

Auditors’ Remuneration

During 2007, the audit and non-audit fees payable/paid to KPMG was made
up of an audit fee of HK$0.6 million (2006: HK$0.6 million) and a non-
audit related service fee of HK$0.03 million (2006: HK$0.3 million). The
latter represented taxation service fee, and the 2006 figure also included
professional service fee.

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee consists of 3 Non-executive Directors; 2 of
whom are Independent Non-executive Directors.

o Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy (Chairman) (appointed as a member
and the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee on 25 June 2007)

° Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P.

° Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny

° Dr. WONG Tin Yau, Kelvin (resigned as a member and the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee on 25 June 2007)

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of
Directors and senior management.

The remuneration of Directors is determined by the Board based on
the advice of the Remuneration Committee with reference to their
responsibilities with the Company. During the year, the Remuneration
Committee convened two times and made recommendations to the Board
regarding the remuneration policy of the Company.
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Committees of the Board (continued)

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee consists of 3 Non-executive Directors; 2 of

whom are Independent Non-executive Directors.

. Mr. HO Lap Kee (Chairman)
. Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, s.B.S., J.P.
. Mr YUEN Kam Ho, George

The main duty of the Nomination Committee is to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board and to select suitable Board members.

The selection of individuals to become Directors is based on assessment
of their professional qualifications and experience. During the year, the
Nomination Committee met one time to discuss matters related to the
appointment of Board members.
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EEEHES

With the ongoing devoted
support and perseverance of the

Directors, senior management
and employees, Tradelink

will continue to sustain its
momentum and business
growth.
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our Momentum
RAF S

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together with EEEMAMNEERRREZEE-_TETLF+A
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007. =+ —HUEFEZREERCEZMBRE -

Principal Place of Business FELEME

The Company is a company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and RAREBRBEMKLILIATE AAEE - i SERF
has its registered office and principle place of business at 11th and 12th FTELEWE  UREBEBINEAESHESRT L
Floors, Tower B, Regent Centre, 63 Wo Yi Hop Road, Kwai Chung, Hong BREE11MERK 1218

Kong.

Principal Activity FEHEK

The principal activity of the Company is the provision of front-end GETS AABMEEERSIREEES THREBEE S XN
Services for processing certain official trade-related documents. Al GETS fR7% o

The principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries AKABNB AR EZ XK NEMFBIHNYEHRE
are set out in Note 14 to the financial statements. Kiit 14 -




Report of the Directors
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases attributable
to the major customers and suppliers respectively during the financial year
is as follows:

FREEFREER

AEERATREE - REBTP RHEE D BIETTH
HEMERBERMT

Percentage of the Group’s Total

HAREBMAENE DL
Sales Purchases
HEH B
The largest customer =ARP 1.4%
Five largest customers in aggregate AAREFAR 3.5%
The largest supplier A MIER 7.4%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hAREEEEET 17.4%

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these
major customers and suppliers.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2007 and the
state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs at that date are set out in the
financial statements on Pages 49 to 121.

Transfer to Reserves

Profit attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of HK$76,204,000
(2006: HK$83,216,000) have been transferred to reserves. Other
movements in reserves are set out in Note 22 to the financial statements.

The Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK cents
6.18 per share (2006: HK cents 5.10 per share) for the year ended 31
December 2007.

Fixed Assets

Movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in Note 13 to the
financial statements.
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Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in Note 22 to the financial statements.

Shares were issued during the year on exercise of share options.

Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Chairman and Non-executive Director
Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P.

Executive Directors
Mr. YUE Kwok Hung, Justin
Ms. NARDI Kar Wai, Agnes (appointed on 27/11/2007)
Ms. CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily
(appointed on 9/7/2007 and resigned on 27/11/2007)

Mr. KO Kai Wai, Kelvin (resigned on 25/6/2007)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. LAU Kam Kuen, David
Mr. CHAK Hubert
Mr. YING Tze Man, Kenneth
Mr. LO Sze Wai, Albert
Dr. CHEUNG Yiu Sing
Mr. WEBB Lawrence
(appointed on 11/5/2007)
Mr. NG Chik Sum, Jackson (resigned on 11/5/2007)
Mr. CURRIE Alistair (resigned on 30/3/2007)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny

Dr. WONG Tin Yau, Kelvin

Mr. YUEN Kam Ho, George

Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy (appointed on 11/5/2007)

Biographical details of the Directors at the date of this report are shown on
Pages 16 and 22.

Ms. NARDI Kar Wai Agnes, Dr. WONG Tin Yau Kelvin, Mr. HO Lap Kee
Sunny, Mr. LO Sze Wai Albert, Dr. CHEUNG Yiu Sing and Mr. YING Tze
Man Kenneth shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting in
accordance with Article 100 of the Company’s Articles of Association. With
the exception of Dr. WONG Tin Yau, Kelvin, Mr. YING Tze Man Kenneth and
Dr. CHEUNG Yiu Sing who do not offer themselves for re-election, all the
other retiring directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Mr. LAU Kam Kuen, David is a Director and a civil servant of the
Government, and accordingly may be regarded as interested in all contracts
and other dealings between the Government or the Financial Secretary
Incorporated (“FSI”) and members of the Group.

Apart from the foregoing, no contract of significance to which the Company
or its subsidiaries was a party, in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

Directors’ Service Contract

On 16 August 2005, the employment contract between the Company
and Mr. YUE Kwok Hung, Justin was renewed for a period of three years
commencing 1 January 2006 until 31 December 2008 in relation to the
appointment of Mr. YUE to act as Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
The contract can be terminated by the Company or Mr. YUE by giving three
months’ notice or payment in lieu of notice.

Under the employment contract between the Company and Ms. NARDI, Kar
Wai Agnes dated 4 September 2007, Ms. NARDI has been appointed to be
Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 1 November
2007. The contract can be terminated by the Company or Ms. NARDI by
giving three months’ notice or payment in lieu of notice.

Ms. NARDI, Kar Wai Agnes is also a Director of DTTNCo, an associate of the
Group.

Save for the disclosed, no director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an unexpired service contract
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than normal statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

Mr. YUE Kwok Hung, Justin, Director and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company currently holds 542,000 ordinary shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”).
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Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures (continued)

The Directors of the Company have been granted options under the
Company’s share option scheme, details of which are set out in the section
“Share Option Scheme” below.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors of the Company or any of
their spouses or children under eighteen years of age has interest or short
positions in shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company, any
of its holding company, subsidiaries or other associated corporations, as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

Share Option Schemes

The Company has adopted a Pre-IPO share option scheme on 2 August
2000 and amended on 11 September 2001 and 26 November 2002
respectively and a share option scheme on 14 October 2005 whereby the
Directors are authorised to invite employees of the Group, including its
Directors of any company in the Group, to take up options to subscribe for
shares in the Company at a nominal consideration of HK$1.00 per grant
under the share option scheme. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.

The share option schemes give the participants an opportunity to have
a personal stake in the Company and help motivate the participants to
optimize their performance and efficiency and attract and retain participants
whose contributions are important to the long-term growth and profitability
of the Group.

The total number of share options which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under all share option schemes shall not exceed in
aggregate 10% of the issued capital or 77,763,250 shares at the Company’s
listing date, being 28 October 2005 (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”). Options
that have lapsed shall not be counted for the purpose of calculating the
Scheme Mandate Limit. The Scheme Mandate Limit may be renewed by
obtaining approval of shareholders in general meeting of the Company
provided that such the total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the share option schemes under
the Scheme Mandate Limit as renewed shall not exceed 10% of the shares
issued at the date of approval of such limit (the “Refreshed Limit”). Options
previously granted (which may be cancelled, lapsed or exercised) shall not
be counted for the purpose of calculating the Refreshed Limit.
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
Under the Pre-IPO share option scheme, no option could be granted to

any grantee, so that the grantee would, taking also into account options

previously granted to him, be entitled to subscribe for more than 25% of the

aggregate number of shares subject to the Pre-IPO share option scheme.

a)

b)

Pursuant to the Pre-IPO share option scheme approved on 2 August
2000 and amended on 11 December 2001 and 26 November 2002

The granting of share options commenced on 24 November 2000
and has ceased upon the listing of the Company’s shares on the
Main Board of the SEHK on 28 October 2005. Each option has a 10-
year exercise period. Commencing from the first, second and third
anniversaries of the listing date, the relevant grantee may exercise up
to 25%, 60% and 100% respectively of the shares comprised in the
option (less any number of shares in respect of which the option has
been previously exercised). The exercise price is the lower of HK$0.9
and 80% of the IPO price. On 28 October 2005, the IPO price was
fixed at HK$1.25 per share.

Pursuant to the grant of options approved on 22 March 2005

At its meeting on 22 March 2005, the Board approved a fresh
allotment of share options under the Pre-IPO share option scheme
to all permanent staff. The grant was made conditional upon the
successful listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of
the SEHK. The terms are the same as those for the grants as stated
above, except that the exercise price shall be equal to the IPO price or
HK$1.25 per share.
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

Share Option Scheme

At the general meeting of the Company held on 14 October 2005, the
shareholders approved and adopted a share option scheme (including the
Pre-IPO share option scheme) with the following terms:

a) The purpose of the share option scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel and to provide additional incentives to
employees, directors, consultants, business associates and advisors
to promote the success of the Group.

b) The Board has the absolute discretion to offer any employees
(whether full-time or part-time), directors (including Independent
Non-executive Directors), consultant, business associates or adviser
of the Company or any company within the Group options to
subscribe for shares, provided that the total number of shares issued
or to be issued to any one grantee in any 12 month period shall not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue. The grantee shall
pay HK$1.00 to the Company as nominal consideration for the grant
upon acceptance of the offer of an option. The share options granted
under the share option scheme vest after 12 months, 24 months and
36 months to exercise 25%, 60% and 100% respectively of the share
options. Each option has a 10-year exercise period. The subscription
amount payable in respect of each share option upon exercise of an
option shall be determined by the Board and shall be not less than the
greater of:

(i) the closing price of the shares on the SEHK's daily quotation
sheet on the date, which must be a business day, written on
such option (the Date of Grant);

(i) the average closing price of the shares on the SEHK as stated
in the SEHK’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and

(ii) ~ the nominal value of the shares.
c) At its meeting on 19 March 2007, the Board approved an allotment of

share options under the Share Option Scheme to all permanent staff.
The terms are the same as those stated above in (b).
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Report of the Directors
EEGREE

Share Option Schemes (continued) EREE )

Share Option Scheme (continued) RS E )

As at 31 December 2007, the Directors and employees of the Company R-TZZ+F+-_A=1+—H8 EENARFIREEHS
had the following interests in options to subscribe for shares of the LAUR R BRI R - AT IRIE A A R A AT iR | (E
Company granted for nil consideration under the share option schemes of RERERRRBRD - BHHBERER TEFEARER
the Company. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one DA —IREBREIRER o

ordinary share of the Company.

No. of options Effect No. of options Market value
outstanding at of options outstanding at pershare  Market value
1January  No. of options lapsedupon  No. of options 31 December at date per share
2007 granted  termination of exercised 2007 of grant  on exercise
RIBBLE during  employment doring  R=BBLE of options  of options*
-B-A the year R& L theyear t=A=1-H Exercise Exercise price  EBHRER Bl
WATEN  FRARLN O FEAANM FEROEN  HROEN Dategranted  period  pershare HEHER TEBSR
BREZE  BREZE BRE  BREZE  BREZE RHAH RS ke ROWTE ROENHE
HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT
Directors 3
YUE Kwok Hung, Justin Rl 1,762,500 - - - 1,762,500 24/11/2000 10 yeag 090 - -
10
1,762,500 - - - 1,762,500 1311222001 10 yeag 090 - -
10
982,900 - - - 982,900 147102005 10 yeag 1.25 - -
10
- 2,032,962 - - 2,032,962 06/06/2007 10 yeag 143 143 -
10
KO Kai Wai, Kelvin Rl - 888159 (883,159) - - 06/06/2007 10 years 143 143 -
(resigned on (RZFFtEF 10
25/6/2007) NAZTRARE)
CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily $%/BZ 400,000 - - - 400,000 24/11/2000 10 years 090 - -
(appointed on (R-FELF 105
9/7/2007 & tALA 400,000 - - - 400,000 13/12/2001 10 years 090 - -
resigned on EZARAE 106
27/11/2007) F—A=1ttHA 39684 - - - 396,845 14102005 10 years 125 - -
) 10F
- 415,243 - - 415243 19/03/2007 10 yeag 142 142 -
10
Employees &8 1,845,000 - (16,000) (24,000) 1,805,000  Grantedin 2000 10 years 090 - 112
RZZETEEREL  10F
1,885,000 - (16,000) (24,000) 1845000 Grantedin 2001  10years 090 - 112
RIFE-FEL  10F
795,000 - (30,000) - 765000 Grantedin 2002 10 years 090 - -
RZFEZERY 10F
345,000 - (30,000) (10,000) 305000  Grantedin2003  10years 090 - 142
RIFE-ERE 10F
105,000 - - - 105,000 Granted in 2004 10 years 0.90 - -
RIFEMERY  10F
10,634,506 - (890,345) (76,5%) 9,667,566 141102005 10 yeag 125 - 143
10
- 6,948 961 (517,899) - 6,431,062 19/03/2007 10 years 142 142 -
105
Total @t 21,314,251 10,285,325 (2,388,403) (134595) 29,076,578

The options granted to the Directors are registered under the names of the P EENERE . NRASNEAESNEAEANES

Directors who are also the beneficial owners. L E B o
* being the weighted average closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares immediately * KB R AR ER G B IR T 1 B2 BT A AU T o

before the dates on which the options were exercised.
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Report of the Directors
EEGHEE

Share Option Schemes (continued)

Share Option Scheme (continued)
Information on the accounting policy for share options granted and the

weighted average value per option is provided in Note 1(n)(ii) and Note 21
to the financial statements respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the Company, or
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the
Company or any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares

The Company has been notified of the following interest in the Company’s
issued shares as at 31 December 2007 amounting to 5% or more of the
ordinary shares in issues:

B ERE 2

BT 8 )
BRI N AR R B B NE O EN ST
KER - D RIER B ISIREMN 27 1n)0i) R AT 21 »

B ESOATR - AR TS EME A TR E PR -
AT - HARAANEF T RKRAL AR
(R A BB T 1535 -

FTERRREMALTRES R EE
R ERR KR

S\$

BARNBRH RCEZLF+ - A=+—BEARA
BEETROT - EEEEITEBARA 5% A FREmm
T

Ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each

BREAERB¥020T
% of total
Registered Corporate Number of  issued shares
shareholders interests shares FrEE 81T
BaiE ARER BRIFEE BROBEMHE
Substantial shareholders FERR
The Financial Secretary BRI R REE
Incorporated 95,673,000 - 95,673,000 12.29%
Other persons Hig At
HSBC Holdings Plc ELERAR AT - 63,125,000 63,125,000 8.11%
The Hongkong & Shanghai R LEEE
Banking Corporation Limited RITERAA 63,125,000 - 63,125,000 8.11%
Dr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AG Dr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AG - 62,700,000 62,700,000 8.06%
DJE Investment S. A. DJE Investment S. A. 62,700,000 - 62,700,000 8.06%
Allianz SE Allianz SE - 60,642,000 60,642,000 7.79%
Allianz Global Investors Hong Kong Limited BEEATHEEER
BEABRRA 60,642,000 - 60,642,000 7.79%
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares (continued)

The register of interests in shares and short positions kept under Section
336 of the SFO indicates that the interest disclosed by HSBC Holdings plc is
the same as the 63,125,000 shares disclosed by The Hongkong & Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited, its 100% owned subsidiary and the interest
disclosed by Allianz SE is the same as the 60,642,000 shares disclosed
by Allianz Global Investors Hong Kong Limited, its 100% owned subsidiary
and the interest disclosed by Dr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AG is the same as
the 62,700,000 shares disclosed by DJE Investment S.A., its 81% owned
subsidiary.

Apart from the above, the Company had not been notified by any person
who had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as at 31 December 2007, which was required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules.

Connected Transactions

During 2007, the Company entered into (or continued to be party to) certain
transactions with the Government and the FSI. The FSI has been our
largest shareholder and connected person. The Government, holding the
Company’s shares through the FSI, has therefore also been considered as a
connected person.

Although these transactions were “connected transactions” as defined in
the Listing Rules, all of them were either sharing of administrative services
or de minimis transactions respectively exempted under Rules 14A.33(2)
and 14A.33(3) of the Listing Rules from all reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements.

On 17 May 2006, the Company entered into a Business Support System
(“BSS”) Development and Service Agreement with DTTNCo. DTTNCo is a
connected person of the Company as it is a non wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company as defined under the Listing Rules, while FSI beneficially
owns more than 10% of the issued shares of the Company and DTTNCo
respectively.

FERRREMATARES REEH
BRONEZRAE &)

RIEFES RIS GAIE 336 8T - ATHEFHRMD &
KERFELMETR ELERERARMEENERS
HEXEWBARES DELRITERATAEEN
63,125,000 f% B% {5 — 2 - 1M1 Allianz SE BT # 25 KO 4 5 2
HEEMBRARERLHEEEETBBR AR MKE
#960,642,000/% J% 15— & Dr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AG
Frif B myiE 2R B EL B 5 81% HYMI/EB 2 &) DJE Investment
S. A BT # 2 #962,700,000 AR D — 2 »

BR EXCATIRSN - AARRIFIA R_FTEF+ A
=+ BRI AT RA AR ARG SRR ##E
HIORE - MRERE S KR RPIF 336 AT A T8
15 o

ABEFRERE

RAFHTERAY  REAQFATRENARERR
T WHARREEZMA - ARRHNARFHRE B
Fiit L AR AFTRTBA YIRS

BEXS

R-FZLFE  ARA G EBNRMEARREER]
V(REBEBRERNNETRS - WRAIRREER &
RRMNEARRFFAEALT - ARBITE BT KA R
RZEERFBAARRRD - B EIEREA LR °

BEZERHRLETHRAIRTHYBIBRERS ] - HE2E
RS AIRE ETRAIE 14A.33(2) 15 5 14A.33(3) 1§
DREREHNDZTERRFRFERIER S + WAIFHE
—YIRR - AERBIREAERTE

RZZEZXEFRATEH - ARFIEDTTNCoR] M ¥
& R4t ([BSS)) FE KR e o BIE ETRAIKE
% - HADTTNCo AR R RIMIEZEMB AR - Alte
EARNAMEEAT  BRAIRIREZBRIS I ESHES
AAE X DTTNCo BB 10% FB BT ©
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Connected Transactions (continued)

DTTNCo outsourced the development and operation of its BSS to the

Company under the Agreement, pursuant to which DTTNCo shall upon

the signing of the Agreement pay the Company an initial costs of HK$2.14

million for the development of the BSS and the related information system

infrastructure set-up. The maximum fixed fees payable by DTTNCo to the

Company during each year of the term of the Agreement are as follows:-

BERXS #)

IR¥EZ M - DTTNCo #5 E BSS 2 B3 ] &5& THESM
FARF - B - DTTNCo BRI % ek i » AR
B2 478% 2,140,000 7T - 1ERFI 3 BSS RER M E
MRMERFZER - DTINCoOR I ZEF AT EE
NARBZ&ZBEEERLT

Year 1 ended Year 2 ended Year 3 ended

31 December 31 December 31 December

2006 2007 2008

E—FBZE E_EBZE E=EBZE

—ETRF —ERLE —EENF

+=ZA=+—-HLt +=ZA=+—-HEt +=ZHA=+-HL

HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BIT BT

Initial set-up costs LR A 2,140,000 - -

Maximum fixed monthly charges E=ETAE 200,000* 200,000 200,000
Average monthly extra charges BAFHERE
on customer registration EP MRk

and administration TTHEEINE A - 30,000 35,000
Average monthly extra charges BATFHRE

on incoming call REREINER - 40,000 90,000

Average monthly extra charges on billing BAFHEREEBEINER - 37,500 87,500

Average monthly subscription fees BAPEERFEME 200,000 307,500 412,500

Maximum annual subscription fees BFEeRERFEME 3,640,000 3,690,000 4,950,000

* Assuming monthly charges cover seven and a half months for the year 2006.

The Board has reviewed and the Independent Non-executive Directors have

confirmed that the BSS Transaction (the “Transaction”) for the year ended

31 December 2007 was entered into:

(@)

(ii)

(iii)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

either on normal commercial terms or terms no less favourable to the
Company than terms available to or from independent third parties;
and

in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

* AELRE - EENFFECEFARBR -
ExgrERRE _TRLF+ A=t —RIFED
BSSRZ ([#%5X5 ) BN TEE T HRLS
RHZEILTY

() HAEARFRBER—REKBEZD

(i) IREFEERER - SR TERARBRBELE=T
PEGLSREELPISAIRSR 2

(i FMERBREHI DT RAEMNGRR - AR
BARABBRRERN T -
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Connected Transactions (continued)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rule, the Board engaged, KPMG,
the auditors of the Company to perform the agreed upon procedures on the
Transaction which:

(i) has received the approval from the Board;

(i) is in accordance with the pricing policies of the Company;

(i) has been entered into in accordance with the terms of the agreement
governing such Transaction; and

(iv)  has not exceeded the cap disclosed in the relevant announcement.

The auditors have confirmed to the Board in writing in respect of the
Transaction for the year ended 31 December 2007 that the Transaction:

(i)  was recorded in accordance with the terms of the agreements
governing the Transaction;

(i) was approved by the Board of the Company on 26 April 2006;

(i) was entered into in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Company where the Transaction involve provision of goods and
services by the Company; and

(iv)  the total amount received and receivable by the Company in
connection with the Transaction did not exceed the relevant cap
amount as set out in the announcement dated 17 May 2006.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

The Company did not have any bank loans and borrowings as at 31
December 2007.

Summary of Financial Information

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on Page 122 of the annual report.
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Retirement Scheme BIRETE

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme (the “MPF KEEAZBAEREEREATEAESE([#
Scheme”) for all qualifying employees. Particulars of these retirement BestEl]) - BAZSRRETEIMNE - SIRNUBHRE
schemes are set out in Note 20 to the financial statements. Biat20 -

Confirmations of Independence B R

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-executive AAREWRGEBIUIFRTESNFEER  BIEL
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of MRAEIBENERREERBILALT - RATTRE
the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent Non-executive Directors PEEIENTTES RBEILAL -

to be independent.

Auditors BERD

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A BESHSAEHEERMT - EEFE BRI ERE
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company is to o RARBHRENGRITHRRBEFAS LIR2AH

be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. R ENEREESHSTESEST AR RIZEE -
By Order of the Board KEESH

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, s.B.., J.P. *E

Chairman FERE L ses, 1P,

Hong Kong, 25 March 2008 BE ZEEN\F=A=+1H




Other Information

B

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers

The Board has adopted the Model Code. Directors have been specifically
requested to observe the Model Code when dealing in the Company’s
securities. According to the Company’s record, all Directors have complied
with the required standards as set out in the Model Code.

Purchase, Sales or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

During the twelve months ended 31 December 2007, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of its listed
securities.

Closure of Register of Members

The Register of Members will be closed from 6 May to 9 May 2008, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
In order to qualify for the final dividend, all transfer of shares accompanied
by share certificates and transfer form must be lodged with the Company’s
Registrars, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 pm on 5 May 2008.

Dividend

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK cents
6.18 per share (2006: HK cents 5.10 per share) for the year ended 31
December 2007 to shareholders subject to the approval of shareholders
of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The final
dividend will be paid to shareholders whose names appear on the Register
of Members of the Company on 6 May 2008, on or about 20 May 2008.

On 9 October 2007, the Company paid an interim dividend of HK cents 3.61
per share (2006: HK cents 4.80 per share) to the shareholders. The total
amount of 2007 interim dividend paid and 2007 final dividend payable is
approximately 100% of the Group’s profit attributable to shareholders for
2007.
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Report of the Auditors
B ES

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tradelink
Electronic Commerce Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 49 to 121,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31
December 2007, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Report of the Auditors
AR E S

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2007 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

25 March 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement
e e

For the year ended 31 December 2007
BE-FFLE+_A=+—AIFE

2007 2006
—EELF —ETREF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
HizE BT T BT T

Turnover =0 3 245,082 248,300
Interest income FEUA 10,186 7,600
Staff costs BEMRZK 5(a) (79,474) (77,851)
Depreciation e (11,065) (14,291)
Other operating expenses AR (44,585) (44,458)
Profit from operations g 120,144 119,300
Impairment loss on investment in &I EHRAFFHH

unlisted equity securities BB EE 16 - (10,000)
Share of losses of an associate Frfl — B & 2 &) 518 (23,955) (7,694)
Gain on partial disposal of an associate & B B ml U e 15 345 622
Profit hefore taxation BB A= R 5 96,534 102,228
Taxation HiI| 6(a) (20,330) (19,012)
Profit for the year REEEF 22(b)(i) 76,204 83,216
Dividends payable to equity REERGERATRE

shareholders of the Company BEARE :

attributable to the year: 11
Interim dividend declared during the year AEEERFIREFRHAE 28,091 37,326
Final dividend proposed after the balance HEEHBEIRAHS

sheet date 48,093 39,685

76,184 77,011

Earnings per share (HK cents) BRER GBAL) 12

Basic BN 9.8 10.7

Diluted e 9.8 10.6

The notes on pages 57 to 121 form part of these financial statements.

57 2F 121 B2 MR EHmEN —&5 -
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
meEEAE

As at 31 December 2007
R-FEF+FEF-_F=+—H

2007 2006
—EELF —ETREF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
KizE BT T BT T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets BEEE 13(a) 44,541 50,568
Interest in leasehold land held for RELEHEFEE AN
own use under operating lease HE iR 13(a) 5,626 5,769
Interest in associates Pk NG e 15 43,020 67,116
Other financial assets HEB s EE 16 - 69,587
93,193 193,040
Current assets RBEE
Trade receivables JEUL AR TR 17 19,381 23,969
Other receivables and prepayments At EGRIE K TS 3R 11,974 9,909
Other financial assets EME s EE 16 69,342 =
Deposits with bank RITIFX 188,500 190,000
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREEE 186,206 145,586
475,403 369,464
Current liabilities REBARS
Trade creditors, accounts payable and JEERFR - B RIE R
other payables E e 5RIE 18 221,479 222,141
Taxation | 7(a) 4,142 7,544
225,621 229,685
Net current assets REEEFE 249,782 139,779
Total assets less current liahilities BEATRABEE 342,975 332,819
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Provision for long service payments RAERTS & B 19 2,173 2,000
Deferred taxation EIEFIIA 7(b)(i) 954 1,596
3,127 3,596
NET ASSETS EEFE 339,848 329,223
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

mARBERER

As at 31 December 2007
R-FEF+FEF—_F=+—H

2007 2006
—ETLF —EERF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BoaE BEET T BT IT

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXE#E
Share capital f&Zx 22(a)(i) 155,642 155,615
Reserves fEE 22(b)(i) 184,206 173,608
339,848 329,223

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 March LEEeRN _TT \F= A —+h B HbfERERETE

2008

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, s.B.S., J.P. E

Chairman ZJh/EE 58S, LP.

YUE Kwok Hung, Justin HiTEE

Executive Director REIH L

The notes on pages 57 to 121 form part of these financial statements. F5725F 121 B 2RI ISREN—H °
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Balance Sheet

As at 31 December 2007
R-FEF+FEF-_F=+—H

2007 2006
—EELF —ETREF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
KizE BT T BT T
Non-current assets FkRBEE
Fixed assets BEE&E 13(b) 43,404 48,943
Interest in leasehold land held for RELEHEFEE AN
own use under operating lease HE iR 13(b) 5,626 5,769
Interest in associates Pt N el ks 15 43,020 76,500
Interest in subsidiaries Frit B B A R fE e 14 10 10
Other financial assets HE s EE 16 - 69,587
92,060 200,809
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables JEUYBRFX 17 18,977 23,871
Other receivables and prepayments A e U TR N FB S FOE 11,309 9,333
Other financial assets HtisEE 16 69,342 =
Deposits with bank RITIEK 188,500 190,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRESEE 185,922 145,020
474,050 368,224
Current liabilities REBAS
Trade creditors, accounts payable and FETERSK « B FRIB R
other payables H b fE{S5RIE 18 226,517 226,329
Taxation | 7(a) 4,509 6,597
231,026 232,926
Net current assets MEEERE 243,024 135,298
Total assets less current liahilities EEABRABEE 335,084 336,107
Non-current liabilities FRBER
Provision for long service payments RHERG 2 B 19 2,038 1,882
Deferred taxation EIERL TR 7(b)(ii) 776 1,340
2,814 3,222
Net assets BEFE 332,270 332,885
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Balance Sheet

BEAER

As at 31 December 2007
KRoFELF+=A=+—8

2007 2006
—EELF —ETREF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
FiaE BT T BT T

Capital and reserves EXE#E
Share capital f&Zx 22(a)(i) 155,642 155,615
Reserves EE 22(b)(ii) 176,628 177,270
332,270 332,885

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 March KEEFeN_TT\F=A=+h A#FEREETE

2008

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, s..s., 1.p. ES:

Chairman FER L ses, 1P

YUE Kwok Hung, Justin HITEFE

Executive Director REERE

The notes on pages 57 to 121 form part of these financial statements. F57 2% 121 B 2 BRI EHREMN—FH o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes

in Equity
e EIR

For the year ended 31 December 2007
BE-FFLE+_A=+—AIEE

2007 2006
—EELF —ETRE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Total equity as at 1 January R—B—BWEREEE 329,223 303,619
Net profit for the year NG S F ) A 76,204 83,216
Dividends declared or approved during RNEFEBIRFIREE SRS
the year HIAR B, (67,776) (60,655)
Movement in equity arising from capital HEXRRZEENES 2T :
transactions:
Issue of new shares BEITHAR 147 459
Listing expenses adjustment il - 607
Equity settled share-based transactions ARSHEAEE 2 % (n & 2,050 1,977
Total equity as at 31 December Rt-ZA=t—BzE=EH 339,848 329,223
The notes on pages 57 to 121 form part of these financial statements. F572F 121 B 2B IEREN—ZH °
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
meRenER

For the year ended 31 December 2007
BE-FFLE+_A=+—AIFE

2007 2006
—ZETtHF —EETRE
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
HizE BT T BT T
Operating activities R
Profit before taxation BR AT A 96,534 102,228
Adjustments for: G
Depreciation e 11,065 14,291
Loss on disposals of fixed assets HEBETEEESE 9 =
Gain on partial disposal of an associate HE oL R RIE 15 (345) (622)
Interest income FEUWA (10,186) (7,600)
Share of losses of an associate Pt A B &8 23,955 7,694
Equity-settled share-based payment RELEE 2 RNDER 2,050 1,977
Impairment loss on investment in LA EMRAFE SR
unlisted equity securities R(EEE - 10,000
Operating profit before changes in RETEEESEBAW
working capital R 123,082 127,968
Decrease in deposits with bank SRITEIRLD 1,500 =
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other FEURBRR « E fh FEURGRIA &
receivables and prepayments TEftEIEEG I, G d) 3,640 (1,216)
Increase in trade creditors, FERTRRFR ~ FETFRIB R E A
accounts payable and other payables & SRIEE AN (1,177) (3,016)
Increase in customer deposits received BREFZESEM 688 365
Cash generated from operations REELENRESARAE 127,733 124,101
Tax paid: E#HE -
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EHEBFEH (24,374) (14,497)
Net cash inflow from operating activities KEEHELENRESRNTR 103,359 109,604
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
I\T\ EEEFL/}ILE%%

For the year ended 31 December 2007
BE-FFLE+_A=+—AIEE

2007 2006
—ZTTLF ZEETRF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
HizE BT T BT T

Investing activities REEE
Proceeds from sales of fixed assets HEBEEESHKIE 3 =
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiary ST A R TS IR - 31,500
Payment for purchase of fixed assets BEETBEEMSZNHIE (4,913) (966)
Payment for purchase of held-to-maturity BASEZRIHAES

securities Pz 5t 508 - (69,587)
Interest received I ETESS 9,800 7,447
Net cash generated from/(used in) REZHHRSHA

investing activities (W) #58 4,890 (31,606)
Financing activities RUESEE
Issue of new shares BEITHAR 22 147 459
Listing expenses adjustment LR AR 22(b)(i) - 607
Dividends paid BT E (67,776) (60,655)
Net cash used in financing activities BMEEENR SRR (67,629) (59,589)
Net increase in cash and RERREEERMFR

cash equivalents 40,620 18,409
Cash and cash equivalents as at R—B—BHWREERELEE

1 January 145,586 127,177
Cash and cash equivalents as at Rt+t-A=+—HKWEEK

31 December ReEE 186,206 145,586
The notes on pages 57 to 121 form part of these financial statements. F57EF 121 Bz MBI BHREN—5 5
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Notes to the Financial Statements

A 75 R R BT

1. Significant accounting policies

1.

TEETEE

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“SEHK™). A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2007, comprise the Group and the Group’s interest
in associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

(a)

B2

A BHRIIEMAERNEBY RS
R ([ oE 2R ) mBEMAK - ZF?
ANEBEHMAE (AT )R
h—ERN AN BRSEER  FEE
SR (TEFHER)) kB REAARE
FHRAIZ G - L EK B T A(EA AR
EODMRERBEBRERZMBER AT
(TB 22 P 1) R £ AR R (T EFAR RN &
ERNBRERTE AKERANTIESS
BURBEERH AT ©

TSR A MR SR
BE-_ZTEF+-A=+—HLFEH
mEMBRE  BREAKBARASEMR
BB R RIS ©

AR PRBA SRR - TR LA
TERFTEEE -

MBREENEREEBHZERRE
A-BE B RAERXHBEH
B A AR REBR - AR RRE
MBHREE - CHERFRE - %FHEF
MABRR - DREBELR NS ERE
EEABATEREMNEMERMEL
H AR KA EL Al SR I R 5 5 A
BENIAEREEFGH B - B
ERABEB RN % FhEt

—57



Notes to the Financial Statements

BT #RAR IR

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1. FESFHBERE)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgement made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and estimates with significant risk of material adjustments in
the next year are discussed in Note 29.

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as
follows:

(i) Transaction fees, handling fees, registration fees and
training income
Revenue is recognised when services have been
provided to customers.

(i)~ Annual subscription fees
Revenue is recognised on a time—apportioned basis by
reference to the period of the subscription.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited 2 SEEFESHER AT
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RIF5#RAR IR

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.

TEEHBEE)

(c)  Revenue recognition (continued)
(iii)  Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the goods and the
related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

(iv)  Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(d)  Other property, plant and equipment
The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated
in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (Note 1(i)):

- buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of the
leasehold land at the inception of the lease (see Note
1(h)); and

- other items of plant and equipment.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BT #RAR IR

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.

TEEHBEE)

(d)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:
Leasehold improvements lower of 5 years or
the remaining term of the lease

Land the remaining term of the lease
Platform hardware and software,

computer and office equipment 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Building 20 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are
exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra—group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra—group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra—group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less any impairment losses (see Note 1(i)).

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited EZ@BETESERAF
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RIF5#RAR IR

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.

TEEHBEE)

(f)

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method
and is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for the
post—acquisition change in the Group’s share of the associate’s
net assets. The consolidated income statement includes the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
associates.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition
of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest in the associate is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the Group’s
long—term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the associate, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

In the Company’s balance sheet, its investments in associates
are stated at cost less impairment losses (see Note 1(i)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BT #RAR IR

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.

TEEHBEE)

(g)

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities, are as
follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated
at cost, which is their transaction price unless fair value can
be more reliably estimated using valuation techniques whose
variables include only data from observable markets. Cost
includes attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. Those investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their classification:

- Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets and are initially stated at fair value. At
each balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss.

- Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the
Company have the positive ability and intention to hold
to maturity are classified as held—to—maturity securities.
Held—to—maturity securities are stated in the balance
sheet at amortised cost less impairment losses (see Note
1(i)).

- Investments in equity securities that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are recognised in the
balance sheet at cost less impairment losses (see Note
1(i).

- Investment in securities which do not fall into any of
the above categories are classified as available—for-sale
securities. At each balance sheet date the fair value
is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised directly in equity, except for impairment
losses (see Note 1(i)).

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited Z5@BEFE5ARAT
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RIF5#RAR IR

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.

TEEHBEE)

(g)

Other investments in debt and equity securities (continued)

- Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group and/or the Company commits to purchase/sell
the investments or they expire.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases.

(i) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are included
in fixed assets and the corresponding liabilities, net
of finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which
write off the cost or valuation of the assets over the term
of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the Company
or Group will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of
the asset, as set out in Note 1(d). Impairment losses are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy
as set out in Note 1(i). Finance charges implicit in the
lease payments are charged to profit or loss over the
period of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BT #RAR IR

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1. FESFHBERE)

(h)  Leased assets (continued)

(iii)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term.

(i) Impairment of assets

(1)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities
and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other
current and non—current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost or are classified as available—
for-sale securities are reviewed at each balance sheet
date to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as follows:

- For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset
and the estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for equity securities
are not reversed.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited Z5@BEFE5ARAT
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RIF5#RAR IR

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1. TESHHE(E)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities

and other receivables (continued)

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.

For available—for—sale securities, the cumulative
loss that had been recognised directly in equity is
removed from equity and is recognised in profit
or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that
is recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that asset
previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available—for—sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised directly in equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BT #RAR IR

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1. FESFHBERE)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- pre—paid interests in leasehold land classified as
being held under an operating lease; and

- investments in subsidiaries and associates.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its net selling price and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre—tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a
cash—generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RIF5#RAR IR

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.

TEEHBEE)

(i)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash—generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash—generating
units are allocated to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.

FESHBER(E)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)
(ifi)  Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting,
in respect of the first six months of the financial year. At
the end of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as
it would at the end of the financial year (see Note 1(i)(i)
and (ii).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of available—for—sale equity securities and
unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even
if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised
had the impairment been assessed only at the end of the
financial year to which the interim period relates.

(j)  Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost less impairment losses
for bad and doubtful debts (see Note 1(i)).

(k)  Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RIF5#RAR IR

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1. FESFHERE)

() Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

(i) Financial guarantees issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

(i) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non—occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(m)  Income tax
Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised directly in equity, in which case they are recognised
in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.
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1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

1. TEESHBEE)

(m)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax
loss or credit can be utilised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RIF5#RAR IR

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.

FESHBER(E)

(m) Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities if, the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

= the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis
or realise and settle simultaneously.

(n)  Employee benefits

() Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution plans and the
cost of non—-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BT #RAR IR

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.

TEEHBEE)

(n)

Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Share based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the Black—Scholes
model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to those share options,
the total estimated fair value of the share options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of share options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the liabilities or capital reserve) except
where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).

Provision for long service payments

Provision is made for potential long service payment
obligations that may arise upon cessation of employment
of the Group’s employees in the future, to the extent that
there is a reasonable probability that the amounts are
likely to become payable. Such provisions are made on
a systematic basis, taking into consideration the age,
salary, and years of service of the employees who may
qualify for such payments in the future based on their
past services rendered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

1. FESFHERE)

(0)

(p)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined.

Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are
considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)  the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one
or more intermediates, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial
and operating policy decisions, or has joint control over
the Group;

(i) the Group and the party are subject to common control;

(iii) ~ the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture in
which the Group is a venture;

(iv)  the party is a close family member of a party referred

to in Notel(p)(i) or is an entity under the control, joint
control or significant influence of such individuals; or
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BT #RAR IR

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

1.

FESHBEER(E)

(p)

Related parties (continued)

(v)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for
the benefit of employees of the Group or any entity that is
a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that
is engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services within a
particular economic environment (geographical segment),
which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from
those of other segments.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment.
Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during
the period to acquire segment assets (both tangible and
intangible) that are expected to be used for more than one
period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RIF5 ¥R IR

Changes in accounting policies

B BERNEE

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs and
interpretations that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group and the Company.

There have been no significant changes to the accounting policies
applied in these financial statements for the years presented as a
result of these developments. However, as a result of he adoption of
HKFRS 7, “Financial instruments: Disclosures” and the amendments
to HKAS 1 “Presentation of financial statements: Capital disclosures”,
there have been some additional disclosures provided as follows:

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 7, the financial statements
include expanded disclosure about the significance of the Group’s
financial instruments and the nature and extent of risks arising from
those instruments, compared with the information previously required
to be disclosed by HKAS 32, “Financial instruments” Disclosure
and presentation”. These disclosures are provided throughout these
financial statements, in particular in Note 23.

The amendment to HKAS 1 introduces additional disclosure
requirements to provide information about the level of capital and
the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for managing capital.
These new disclosures are set out in Note 22(e).

Both HKFRS 7 and the amendment to HKAS 1 do not have any
material impact on the classification, recognition and measurement of
the amounts recognised in the financial instruments.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period (see Note 30).

BREFMAGERM— RN REETEE
PRSI a2 kE - R EHRTEA MRS
AEFT MR AR KA HAKE R AR AR B K
% =]

ZERRILBE 25 FENZ S EREPE
RS BREEEMERES - A - BREKR
REBMBHREENE 7R IMBETR: WEIRE
AR 15 (KER]) [MBmEAMNZET : B
RIREE | EEUTE TRIMNEE

BHREAEEMBREEMNE 7S - MEERM
BEMARESHTANERERRETAME
FHEREE MEENRE  EBCREEE SR
EANFRREMTR: BERZIARENE
HHE - ZERBNZEVHERRAT Awm
JCLABT7E 23 B Rtk

ARG ENEIREER) REBIMEER
- AREBEENKFERASEEREANE
2 BERREF - ZEHM BB E 226)

BEMBHRELENE7TREE BT ERE 15
(BETHEAR SR T EANRRNTEND
B BRI EELARAEAYE -

AR BN AN S+ BRI R A ) i R A0
FIERIREE (RATZ30) °

-------------------’W5



Notes to the Financial Statements

BT #RAR IR

3. Turnover 3.

e

The principal activity of the Company is the provision of front-end
Government Electronic Trading Services (“GETS”) for processing
certain official trade-related documents. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries are set out in Nofe 14 to the financial statements.

Turnover represents the value of services provided and goods
supplied to customers. The amount of each significant category of
revenue recognised in turnover during the year is as follows:

RABMEZER - BIREEBEE THFEE
B SR TE T & 5 RS ([GETS)) -
MEBARMEZEBFR SIRBBERE
Kiat 14 -

EEBRBREATPIRHREAEERNEE -
FAEREEERANZ EEWRER NS EN
N

2007 2006
—EBTLF —EETRE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Transaction and handling fees RGHREIRE 219,155 225,944
Annual subscription and registration fees FERNELE 17,317 18,216
Training income A 194 139
Sales of software and related installation MEREETE ZHE 119 84
Others Hib 8,297 3,917
245,082 248300

4. Segment reporting 4. DKL

No segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s
business and geographical segments. Throughout the year, the Group
has been operating principally in a single business and geographical
segment, i.e. the operation of electronic trading services in Hong
Kong.
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RIF5#RAR IR

5. BRBiATEA

BR AT FIE F0ER

5. Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

2007 2006
—ETLHF —EETRE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(@)  Staff Costs: BERA :
Contributions to defined contribution AEHFGEK
retirement plan T2 2,133 2,074
Equity-settled share-based payment PARRPESEE 2
expenses f&fn & A 2,050 1,977
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMEF 75,291 73,800
79,474 77,851
(b)  Other Items: HmIEE -
Auditors’ remuneration %NS 568 555
Depreciation e
— assets held for use under — RIS ERE
operating lease FRMEE 143 142
— other assets —Hibh&EE 10,922 14,149
Operating lease charges in respect of YIRS ERS
properties 937 1,011
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6. Income tax in the consolidated income statement 6.

mEWRERNE

(a)  Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:

(@) FABBEROBIEAS :

2007 2006
—EELF —ETREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Provision for Hong Kong REERBFGT B

Profits Tax for the year 20,631 21,468

Under/(over)-provision in LA FERETR (BERE)
respect of prior years 341 (816)
Deferred taxation TRFEFIIA (642) (1,640)
20,330 19,012

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2007 is calculated
at 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for

the year.

(b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at

—RRLE . FENGHBRBIRFAMGETER
B AH) 17.5% (ZFZRF  17.5%) 5 °

(b) MIEXHESIHENIZERRENH RN

applicable tax rates: N
2007 2006
—EELF —EBTRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Profit before tax BRE A& A 96,534 102,228
Notional tax on profit before tax, calculated %3 FA A B3R 555 F 89
at the rates applicable to profits B 5T E HIBRE AT A
in the countries Concerned MBEFIA 16,893 17,890
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses JER] FHUR B S TR IS R & 4,832 3,225
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue FEER TR A TR S 2 (1,843) (1,439)
Under/(over)-provision in prior years AFERETR (BEEE) 341 (816)
Other differences H =% 107 152
Actual tax expense EBRHRIEY H 20,330 19,012
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7. Income tax in the balance sheet 1. EEEBERNMESD
(@)  Current taxation in the balance sheets represents: (a) BEBERMAHFIES
The Group The Company
rEE FNE|
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELF ZETTRF ZEBTEF ZTTF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BET T BT T
Provision for Hong Kong REEFBFEH
Profits Tax for the year B 20,631 21,468 20,155 20,521
Provisional Profits Tax BT E RS
Paid (16,489) (13,924) (15,646) (13,924)
4,142 7,544 4,509 6,597
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) BEERNEEHEEERAE:
(i) The Group (i) FEH
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities ERtRa BEAERERNELERIE
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the (BE)BENARIDRFRNES
movements during the year are as follows: s

Depreciation

allowances

in excess of

related

depreciation
ERREY Tax losses Total
BT E HEEE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BT T BT IT

Deferred tax arising from: 3R E T 3% B AEALFE :

As atl January 2006 R-ZFEZEF—H—H 3,401 (165) 3,236
(Credited)/charged to RERE W

consolidated (Bt A,/ 3%

income statement (1,805) 165 (1,640)
As at 31 December 2006 R-ZEZF+-A=+—H 1,596 = 1,596
As at 1 January 2007 R-ZEEtFE—H—H 1,596 - 1,596
Credited to consolidated  RARASWHER

income statement st A (642) - (642)
As at 31 December 2007 R=-ZFEEtF+-HA=+—H 954 - 954
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7. Income tax in the balance sheet (continued) 7. EEEBERNAEH(Z)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (continued) (b) BEEAHELERBEENAERE :: (&)
(i) The Company (i)  Axna]
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities EREEBBERERIELERIE (B
recognised in the balance sheet and the movements )/ BERHERE D A R F A )10
during the year are as follows: T

Depreciation

allowances
in excess of
related
depreciation
EERESY
BT E
HK$’000
BT T
Deferred tax arising from: KE T2 EEEEFE -
As at 1 January 2006 RZZEZF—HA—H 2,949
Credited to income statement AU EE KT A (1,609)
As at 31 December 2006 RZZEZENF+_A=+—H 1,340
As at 1 January 2007 R-ZEZEtHE—-H—H 1,340
Credited to income statement  RURFERFTA (564)
As at 31 December 2007 R-ZEZtFE+=-A=+—H 776
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8. Directors’ remuneration 8. EEM2
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the RIBCATUEBINE 161 K BN ESHESFIBW
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: N
Basic
salary,  Contributions
allowances to Share-
and other retirement hased 2007
benefits schemes payments Total
Fees EXREHE 2 BB Bonus* DUgE - - -3
He REAMER TR A ERNXE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI BT BRI BT BRI
Executive Directors BTES
YUE Kwok Hung, Justin RENE - 2,550 12 1,871 271 4,704
KO Kai Wai, Kelvin B - 1,920 6 - - 1,926
CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily ~ &IBEf - 629 5 - - 634
NARDI Kar Wai, Agnes ZRE - 189 1 - - 190
Non-executive directors FBTES
LEE Nai Shee, Harry ENE 20 - - - - 20
NG Chik Sum, Jackson RiE3 7 - - - - 7
Hubert CHAK 3 20 - - - - 20
YING Tze Man, Kenneth BFX 20 - - - - 20
CHEUNG Yiu Sing SRIER 20 - - - - 20
CURRIE Alistair CURRIE Alistair 5 - - - - 5
WEBB Lawrence WEBB Lawrence 13 - - - - 13
LAU Kam Kuen, David 2eHE 20 - - - - 20
L0 Sze Wai, Albert A 20 - - - - 20
WONG Tin Yau, Kelvin BRH 130 - - - - 130
HO Lap Kee, Sunny A E 110 - - - - 110
YUEN Kam Ho, George ReE 140 - - - - 140
CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy &4 81 - - - - 81
Total st 606 5,288 24 1,871 271 8,060
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8. Directors’ remuneration (continued) 8. EEM=(Z
Basic
salary,  Contributions
allowances to Share-
and other retirement based 2006
benefits schemes payments Total
Fees EAH© - EH RIKER Bonus* WA  ZEERF
ik RE A7 STEIfER A BT @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Executive Directors HTES
YUE Kwok Hung, Justin R - 2,700 12 1,986 172 4,870
CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily  &IB&E - 1,564 10 108 70 1,752
KO Kai Wai, Kelvin Y4 - 387 2 - - 389
Non-executive directors FHTES
LEE Nai Shee, Harry =T 20 - - - - 20
NG Chik Sum, Jackson RIER 20 - - - - 20
Hubert CHAK B 20 - - - - 20
YING Tze Man, Kenneth BFX 20 - - - - 20
CHEUNG Yiu Sing SRIZR, 20 - - - - 20
CURRIE Alistair CURRIE Alistair 20 - - - - 20
LAU Kam Kuen, David 25k 20 - - - - 20
LO Sze Wai, Albert s 20 - - - = 20
FONG Ching, Eddy HIE 112 - - - - 112
WONG Tin Yau, Kelvin BRH 140 - - - - 140
HO Lap Kee, Sunny OVE=S 113 = - - - 113
YUEN Kam Ho, George REE 13 - - = - 13
Total @t 538 4,651 24 2,094 242 7,549
@ Bonus represented actual bonus paid during the year. * TEALEF R ERIEA -
The above emoluments include the value of share options granted FHIFS - BIEREARD B0 SRR 2 T
to certain directors under the company’s share option scheme as FEEHERENSY BBNEEE . L E
estimated at the date of grant. Details of these benefits in kind are YRS E D N E B e e = [ 2| —
disclosed under the paragraph “Share Option Schemes” in the Report ERIBE o

of the Directors.
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9. Individuals with highest emoluments 9. BREFAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2006: FR > AAREFALTBE=Z2EE(ZZZT X
two) are directors during the year whose directors’ remuneration are F M) HEEWSERNZSHE - BHA
disclosed in Note 8. The remaining emoluments in respect of the five LEREFATHHRTHSAT :

individuals with the highest emoluments are as follows:

2007 2006
—EELHF —ETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Salaries and other emoluments e MEMBE 4,028 4,184
Discretionary bonuses BBIEAT 172 230
Share-based payments LARR 1D AE R A Z - 276 171
Retirement scheme contributions RINEFFT SR 31 36
4,507 4,621
The emoluments of the five individuals with the highest emoluments A mERT ATHMESEEELNT
are within the following bands:
2007 2006
—EBETLF ZEETRF
Number of Number of
HK$ BIT individuals individuals
AE A
1,000,001-1,500,000 1,000,001-1,500,000 1 2
1,500,001-2,000,000 1,500,001-2,000,000 3 2
Over 2,000,001 33 2,000,001 1 1
10. Profit attributable to equity shareholders 10. RIEFE AEGRER
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders RNATIREZAEAEESZEZMNBDEEE
of the Company includes a profit of HK$64,964,000 (2006: FBEE 64,964,000 T ( —EENF: B1E86,675,0007T)
HK$86,675,000), which has been dealt with in the financial HEA] - BERAARR RN ERE PRI o

statements of the Company.
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11. Dividends 11. RE
(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company (a) ZAEEFERERMNRATREREARNRKRE
attributable to the year
2007 2006
—EELF ZETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Interim dividend declared and paid of BRI RS
HK cents 3.61 per share Fh%3.61 71
(2006: HK cents 4.80 per share) (ZZZRF : F&4.80%8) 28,091 37,326
Final dividend proposed after the balance  #5& B & ¥RV RIS
sheet date of HK cents 6.18 per share % 6.18 71l
(2006: HK cents 5.10 per share) (ZZZREF : HI5.10780) 48,093 39,685
76,184 77,011
The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date has HEEABRBRRERE  WAREERABERRE
not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date. f& o
(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company (b) FAFE—BMBEFERSIAERRSAER
attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid RAwIIREREE ARE
during the year
2007 2006
—EELF —ETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Final dividend in respect of the previous FAR E—FHREFED
financial year, approved and paid & RSB RER S
during the year of HK cents 5.10 per share ~ &f%5.10 78
(2006: HK cents 3.00 per share) (ZZZTRF : FR%3.0073810) 39,685 23,329
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12. Earnings per share 12. BR BRI
(@) Basic earnings per share (a) ERELREF
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on FERNERERBRNTIERBEARRD R ZL@EI&
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the A A JEL &R 7 7B # 76,204,000 7T
Company of HK$76,204,000 (2006: HK$83,216,000) and (ZZEZT /NG B %83,216,0007T ) &
the weighted average number of 778,154,000 ordinary REFRND EITE BB INE LR
shares (2006: 777,694,000 shares) in issue during the year, 778,154,000 % ( = Z =754 : 777,694,000
calculated as follows: BOIEAT A RETE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AR IIHE -1/ 2
2007 2006
—EELF —ETREF
000 ‘000
TR T
Issued ordinary shares as at 1 January R—A—HBER{TZER 778,076 777,633
Effect of shares issued BETRMDHE 78 61
Weighted average number of ordinary R+=—A=+—H
shares as at 31 December I BARNAE AR K 778,154 777,694
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12. Earnings per share (continued) 12. BREF (&)
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) ERESERF
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on FRNEGRESE R HBBR AR R T B
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the A AE(EREAEE76,204,000T( =&
Company of HK$76,204,000 (2006: HK$83,216,000) and the TS B8 83,216,000 7T ) LA R B EBEITE
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 781,023,000 AR A INE 5 20781,023,000 % (===
(2006: 785,616,000 shares), calculated as follows: 7N : 785,616,000 BR)ZIA T AT HE
(i) Profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the ()  ARE]ZEREEFEAENMNL D F
Company (diluted) (A )
2007 2006
—eRLE  —TTAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Profit attributable to ordinary AN E B E
equity shareholders BAa AEMER 76,204 83,216
(i) Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) (i)  ZBIRIIFE-FIG % 2 (4t E )
2007 2006
i 3 ZETRF
'000 ‘000
TR T
Weighted average number of W+=—A=+—8H
ordinary shares AR NAE
as at 31 December FHRRE 718,154 777,694
Effect of deemed issue of shares BARBARAAEREE
under the Company’s share option EREEBRERTRG
scheme for nil consideration (Note 21) 2 (KfiE21) 2,869 7,922
Weighted average number of ordinary Rt+=ZB=+—HBLER
shares (diluted) as at 31 December IR (LEE) 781,023 785,616
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13. Fixed assets 13. BEEE
(a)  The Group (a) ANEE

Platform Interest in

hardware leasehold

and land held

software, for own

computer use under

and office operating

equipment Furniture lease

Leasehold ~ FAEH and RELE

improvements R Motor fixtures REHE

HEy BER vehicles HRR Building Subtotal BAZHE Total
$5E BAERE RE B [ &2 N LiER @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT AYTn  BETn BT BETn  B¥Tn B¥Tx

Cost: KA

As at 1 January 2007 R-EEtE-F-H 13,193 229,487 486 2,766 33,250 219,182 6,018 285,200
Additions RE 579 4,158 - 176 - 4913 - 4913
Disposals HE (166) (10,850) - (58) - (11,074) - (11,074)
As at 31 Decemher 2007 R=EEtE+-A=+-H 13,606 222,795 486 2,884 33,250 273,021 6,018 279,039

Accumulated depreciation: Rzt :

As at 1 January 2007 R=22t£-A-R 6,603 217,130 395 1,576 2910 228614 249 228863
Charge for the Year FRTERY 1,867 6,999 46 341 1,663 10,922 143 11,065
Disposals it (159)  (10,850) - (53) - (11,062) - (11,062)
As at 31 Decemher 2007 R=EBtF+-A=1-H 8,311 213,279 441 1,870 4513 228474 392 228,866
Net hook value: REFE

As at 31 Decemher 2007 W=ZEt+E+-A=t+-H 5,295 9,516 45 1,014 28,677 44547 5,626 50,173
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13. Fixed assets (continued) 13. BEEE (&)
(a)  The Group (continued) (a) AEHE®E)
Platform Interest in
hardware leasehold
and land held
software, for own
computer use under
and office operating
equipment Furniture lease
leasehold ~ FAREH and RELE
improvements FEGE Motor fixtures RERE

HEY BiR vehicles GRKE  Buldng  Sublotal AAZEE Total
¥3EE  BAERE B #E BT b HER 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  BETT A% Tn  BETr  ABTr  A%Tr BT BTk

Cost: A

Asat 1 January 2006 RZZE/ F—F—H 13,014 228,899 350 2,733 33,250 278,246 6,018 284,264
Additions AE 179 618 136 3 - 966 - 966
Disposals il - (30) - - - (30) - (30)
Asat 31 December 2006 RW=FZT/ E+-A=+—H 13,193 229,487 486 2,766 33,250 279,182 6,018 285,200

Accumulated depreciation: ZFriE :

Asat 1 January 2006 R=ZE F—F—H 4,712 206,965 350 1,221 1247 214,495 107 214,602

Charge for the year FRRERY 1,891 10,195 45 355 1,663 14,149 142 14291

Disposals irf - (30) - - - (30) - (30)
As at 31 December 2006 W=ZEEAF+-A=1—H 6,603 217,130 3% 1,576 2910 228,614 249 228,863

Net book value: REFE

As at 31 December 2006 W=ZEEAF+-A=1—H 6,590 12,357 91 1,190 30,340 50,568 5,769 56,337
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13. Fixed assets (continued) 13. BEEE (&)
(b)  The Company (b) AT
Platform Interest in
hardware leasehold
and land held
software, for own
computer use under
and office operating
equipment Furniture lease
Leasehold ~ FAEH and RELE
improvements R Motor fixtures REHE

HEy BER vehicles HRR Building Subtotal BAZHE Total
$5E BAERE RE B [ &2 N LibER @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT  AYTn  BETn BT BT B¥Tn B¥Tx

Cost: KA

As at 1 January 2007 RZEEtE-F-H 13,121 216,060 486 2,679 33,250 265,596 6,018 271,614
Additions RE 579 3,838 - 176 - 4,593 - 4,593
Disposals HE (166) (10,850) - (58) - (11,074) - (11,074)
As at 31 Decemher 2007 HR=ZF+F+-f =1-H 13,534 209,048 486 2,197 33,250 259,115 6,018 265,133

Accumulated depreciation: Rzt :

As at 1 January 2007 RZZZtE-F-H 6,580 205,265 395 1,503 2,910 216,653 249 216,902
Charge for the year FRRERY 1,854 6,215 45 343 1,663 10,120 143 10,263
Disposals HE (159) (10,850) - (53) - (11,062) - (11,062)
As at 31 Decemher 2007 R=ZFtF+-A=1-H 8,275 200,630 440 1,793 4,573 215,711 392 216,103
Net book value: REFE

Asat 31 Decemher 2007 R=ZF+FE+-A=1-H 5,259 8418 46 1,004 28,677 43404 5,626 49,030
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13. Fixed assets (continued) 13. BEEE (&)
(b)  The Company (continued) (b)y ARAE#E)
Platform Interest in
hardware leasehold
and land held
software, for own
computer use under
and office operating
equipment Furniture lease
leasehold ~ FAREH and RELE
improvements FEGE Motor fixtures RERE

HEY BiR vehicles GRKE  Buldng  Sublotal AAZEE Total
¥3EE  BAERE B #E BT b HER 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  BETT A% Tn  BETr  ABTr  A%Tr BT BTk

Cost: A

Asat 1 January 2006 RZZE/ F—F—H 12942 215,519 350 2,649 33,250 264,710 6,018 270,728
Additions RE 179 571 136 30 - 916 - 916
Disposals il - (30) - - - (30) - (30)
Asat 31 December 2006 RW=FZT/ E+-A=+—H 13,121 216,060 486 2,679 33,250 265,59 6,018 271,614

Accumulated depreciation: ZFriE :

Asat 1 January 2006 R=ZE F—F—H 4,702 196,376 350 1,156 1247 203,831 107 203,938
Charge for the year FRRERY 1878 8919 45 347 1,663 12,852 142 12,99
Disposals irf - (30) - - - (30) - (30)
As at 31 December 2006 W=ZEEAF+-A=1—H 6,580 205,265 3% 1,503 2910 216,653 249 216,902
Net book value: REFE

As at 31 December 2006 W=ZEEAF+-A=1—H 6,541 10,795 91 1,176 30,340 48943 5,769 54,712
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13. Fixed assets (continued) 13. BEEE (&)
(c)  The analysis of net book value of properties is as follows: () WIEBREFESFTAT :
2007 2006
—ETLHF —ETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
The Group and the Company REBRADQT BEET T BT IT
In Hong Kong RER
— medium-term leases —HHHE 5,626 5,769
5,626 5,769
Representing: Rk
Interest in leasehold land held for own use  ARIB&EEHERH1EE H
under operating leases S iR 5,626 5,769
5,626 5,769
14. Interest in subsidiaries 14. Fr{&Mi B A R
2007 2006
—BTLHF —ETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETMRD - BAAME 10 10
Details of the subsidiaries which principally affected the results or TEXEREBLESEENHB ARG EW
assets of the Group are as follows: T

Percentage of

Place of Particulars of shares held by
incorporation issued and Group and
Name of subsidiary and operation paid up capital Company Principal
company AR R BRTR AEERADT activity
M AT BB I i B BREBRAFSE i RPE DL FEEWR
Digi-Sign Certification Hong Kong 10,000 shares of 100% Certificate Authority
Services Limited "B HK$1 each services
10,000 fx AR EE FEZE R
TS 1 TR D
Trade Facilitation Hong Kong 100 shares of 100% Dormant
Services Limited a8 HK$1 each R
100 R G RREE
B 1 TR D
Each of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under Note 1(e) LA B BT EE 1(e) TR ERZIEHIH B AR -
and have been consolidated into the Group’s financial statements. WERANEBH S ISHELE AR ©
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15. Interest in associates 15. Fr{EBE QA R #ER
The Group The Company
AEH AT
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EBLF ZEEREF ZEBEEF ZEZERHF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BRI BT T ST IT
Unlisted shares, at cost JEEMRD IRRAE - = 82,280 82,280
Share of net assets BIEEEFE 43,020 67,116 - =
Less: Impairment loss J - RfEEE - = (39,260) (5,780)
43,020 67,116 43,020 76,500
The following list contains the particulars of associates, all of which AT EIE S ARINEES  ZEF A rEAELT
are unlisted corporate entities: EES
Percentage Percentage
of Group’s of shares
Place of Particulars of effective held by the
incorporation issued and interest Company
and operation paid up capital AEE b FN/NE| Principal
Name of associate SRS & ERTHE BRER Frisi 4o activity
BEAREH B RAFEE Bt Aok FEEK
i-LegalService Ltd Hong Kong 5,034,962 35% 35% Provision of
B ordinary shares online legal
of HK$1 each services
5,034,962 % he gt
FREE VERRRTES
B 1 TR
KAZ Computer Hong Kong 100 ordinary 25% 25% Provision of
Services Hongkong &8 shares of data centre
Limited HK$1 each services
100 iR BAR HEt R
HEAE 1T R0 AR TS
TR
Pan Asian E-Commerce Hong Kong 5 ordinary 20% 20% Provision of
Alliance Services Ltd & shares of HK$1 secretariat and
each administrative
5 iR &R services
HESE 1T RIEWE R
HIBAR TR AR TS
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15. Interest in associates (continued)

15. PGB e A Rl m ()

Percentage Percentage

of Group’s of shares

Place of Particulars of effective held by the

incorporation issued and interest Company
and operation paid up capital REEE T ¥N/NE| Principal
Name of associate FMAR LR ERITHE BRER FriERR 17 activity
BEATEH =3 RAFHE Eaged Pl FEEWR
Pan Asian e-Commerce British Virgin 10 ordinary 20% 20% Management of
Alliance Trade Islands shares of Pan Asian
Services Limited HBREIEHS US$1 each Alliance trade
10 &/ services
HAEXS 1T oLzl
ik =eiv
Pan Asian Certificate British Virgin 10 ordinary 20% 20% Management of
Policy Authority Islands shares of Pan Asian
Limited RBEIHS US$1 each Alliance public
10 IR &R% key infrastructure
HEX® 1T EIRZ TR
TR ZARLEE
Digital Trade and Hong Kong 135,240,000 57% 57% Provision of
Transportation & ordinary shares electronic
Network Limited of HK$1 each messaging
(“DTTNCo”) 135,240,000 A% routing and
HIGE ZERBEE RS FiREE transformation
AR 2R ([DTTNCol) B 1 T mAR services
RIEET
AMEEEXR
R RT

(@) Deemed disposal of an associate
During the year 2007, DTTNCo allotted new shares to third
parties, causing the Group’s equity interest in DTTNCo to
be diluted from 58.33% to 56.57% (2006: from 70.83% to
58.33%). Such allotment gave rise to a deemed disposal of

part of the Group’s interest in the associate, resulting in a gain
on the deemed disposal of approximately HK$345,000 (2006:

HK$622,000).

(a) BRALEHEAT

MN-TZT A4 DTTNCo[A % = 7 Fe B 5
B&fp o B - AN EE AT {h DTTNCo K iR #
F58.33% A E56.57% (ZZTZT/N4F : /i
70.83% WA E58.33%) © L SEEWE S
B D AN B PTG B A R A RS o
bt - AEEERIRR AL ESE RS LE
# 345,000 7T (ZFF /N4 : % #622,000
TT) °
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15. Interest in associates (continued) 15. Fr{EHtE N RlEx (2)
(b)  Summary financial information on associates (b) ErEAFNHEERTE
Profit/
Assets Liabilities Equity Revenue (loss)
BE afE &N WA ER(FE)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BB
2007 - o -3
100 per cent 100% 94,862 (28,061) (66,801) 29,913 (41,415)
Group’s effective interest* REBEER R 48,969 (8,193) (40,776) 7,637 (23,972)
2006 ZEERE
100 per cent 100 % 133,934 (29,797) (104,137) 20,615 (13,426)
Group’s effective interest* REBEER R 74,580 (10,120) (64,460) 5,219 (7,897)
2 The Group's share of losses of certain associates exceeds its interest * AEBEEE TH S ARBIBRAHREE
in these associates and accordingly recognition of further losses is NERME G - T8 — P HERES -

discontinued.

16. Other financial assets 16. HibEBt &=
The Group The Company
REE AT
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EBELFE —TTRE ZEZtE —TITF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Non-current IR ED
Unlisted equity securities ABRIE ETARA
—in Hong Kong, at cost FBFE - RKAE 57,500 57,500 57,500 57,500
Less: impairment * JB  RE* (57,500) (57,500) (57,500) (57,500)
Held-to-maturity debt securities REBZIN MRS
— listed outside Hong Kong 2R HRERES - 69,587 - 69,587
- 69,587 - 69,587
Current E
Held-to-maturity debt securities REBZIN MRS
— listed outside Hong Kong R HRERES 69,342 = 69,342 =
Total 4t 69,342 69,587 69,342 69,587
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RIF5#RAR IR

16. Other financial assets (continued) 16. HthB&EE (&)
The held-to-maturity debt securities represents investment in US BREINFE R A EEE SR E BRI L
Treasury Bonds listed outside Hong Kong. Mz ERBEEESFZFRE -

The Group and the Company

REBMEARAF
2007 2006
—EELF ZETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Market value of listed held-to-maturity B EMzFE2RHAGES
debt securities BEME 70,282 69,463
* The amount includes impairment loss on investment in OnePort Holdings * It 8 % B 48 7 OnePort Holdings (BVI) Limited
(BVI) Limited (“OnePort”). The impairment loss was measured as the ([OnePort]) L& IBH M E ERBEEIE - BEES
difference between the carrying value amount of the financial asset and the B DERZEBEMBEENEREE - EREEEUN
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current market rate of return Eﬁ%ﬁéﬁ%ﬂ’ﬂﬁ%@iﬁr WEREGF AR KA S
for a similar financial asset. The Directors of the Company considered the 2B ERAE o RARIEEZR AR OnePort HY1%
investment in OnePort should be fully impaired. BEZBURME ©
17. Trade receivables 17. FEUWRBRFX
Credit terms granted by the Group to customers generally range from AEE-—RETRE—EHZ—EAANEEDS -
one week to one month.
An ageing analysis of trade receivable, based on the invoice date is as BEEZEH - ERERRORE ST
follows:
The Group The Company
EE ¥ /NG|
2007 2006 2007 2006
—ETEF —TTRF ZBELF —ITTRF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BEET T BT BT T ST IT
Current BNHA 19,064 23,642 18,780 23,622
1 to 3 months overdue wE—EARLKR=EA 284 310 164 232
More than 3 months BR=EAEIR
overdue but less +=f&A
than 12 months overdue 33 17 33 17
19,381 23,969 18,977 23,871
The Group’s credit policy is set out in Note 23(a). AEENEEBRENIZ23(a)
All the above balances are expected to be recovered within one year TEAR iR gATRN —FRiE - W — B EIE
and they are generally covered by customer deposits received from PiREMNIRESFRE (A2 18) -

customers (see Note 18).
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18. Trade creditors, accounts payable and other 18. E{fBE - BN RER EME

payables NFIE
The Group The Company
AEE RAF
2007 2006 2007 2006
—ERLE —TTF —RVLE —TBS

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT T BT

Trade creditors FERTEREX 7,701 13,046 7,701 13,046
Customer deposits BREFZE
received (Note 18(ii)) (H1a# 18 (i) 171,658 170,970 171,658 170,970
Accrued charges and FERT RS R E A
other payables eI FRIE 42,120 38,125 40,254 36,790
Amount due to a FEfS—FH
subsidiary LIS PNGIE O - = 6,904 5,523
221,479 222,141 226,517 226,329
(i) Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with (i) MREEB T AERMBRR N E M ERIE
the following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet date. K FESRIBRRER DATRO T -
The Group The Company
AEEH ¥ NN
2007 2006 2007 2006

—22tF _—_TTRF Z2BLF _—TTRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BT T BET T

Due within 1 month or — & A R E| B
on demand EREER 7,701 13,046 7,701 13,046
(i) Deposits received are monies received from customers before (il BURIEZEEAREFPEATHAASENRS
they are allowed to make trade transactions through the use of EITESRZAEREFPWEIMNFRIE - —K
the Group’s systems. Generally, customers are only allowed to Kt BEANURENRSE  UEFM
incur transaction charges up to the amount deposited with the AEESTMNESAR - RS EREFE
Group. Deposits are refundable to customers on demand. KFARE -

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited Z5@BEFE5ARAT
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RIF5#RAR IR

19.

20.

Provision for long service payments 19. RERBERE
The Group The Company
AEH RAF
2007 2006 2007 2006
—ETEF ZZTTRF ZBELF IZTRF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BRI BT TR IT
As at 1 January n—A—H 2,000 3,303 1,882 3,303
Released/utilised EfERR EEA (343) (194) (343) (194)
Provisions charged/(credited) to RUkzER NG,
the income statement (FEA) BB 516 (1,109) 499 (1,227)
As at 31 December ®R+—-—A=+—H 2,173 2,000 2,038 1,882

Employee retirement benefits

20. ESRKEF

21.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$20,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately. Where
employees leave the scheme prior to the full vesting of the employer’s
contributions, the amount of forfeited contributions is used to reduce
the contributions payable by the Group.

Equity settled share-based transactions

21.

AREBRBKERRFIERTRESFTENED) - BB
EERRBEIIERNESR - RUBESE
2 - RESHAB/BUXEATENERHIE
RatEl - RIBSRE S S - BETREBASA
EEHARSENEEBMALL% MK - MEBA
BHE B AR R 20,000 7T © & B EF EI(E
HEE - HHRABREMA - IMEERNEIH
REHEBARLFE - RIA S B EHIR
REEEEAHER -

UREEE 2 RDER

The Company has adopted a Pre-IPO share option scheme on 2
August 2000 which was amended on 11 September 2001 and
26 November 2002 respectively, and a share option scheme on
14 October 2005, whereby the Directors are authorised, at their
discretion, to invite employees of the Group, including directors of
any company in the Group, to take up options at consideration of
HK$1.00 per grant to subscribe for shares of the Company. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in
the Company.

ARBERZZETFN\AZBHRME R FRE
RRATEERR T B (DRI =TT —FNA+—8
k=TT =_F+—A=+NB1{EF])  YERZ
TERFT A+ HBRMERETE - Bt - =
FEERNBEEESAECEEE BEAEEET
EARRMNES - BN REA R FRMDAER
- RERBE100T - FNEREZRFHEAS
EREAANR —RILBAR -
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21. Equity settled share-based transactions 21. UREZEZRHER &

(continued)

The share options granted under the Pre-IPO share option scheme
can only be exercised after 12 months (25%), 24 months (60%)
and 36 months (100%) respectively from the commencement of the
trading of the Company’s shares on SEHK being 28 October 2005,
and have a duration of 10 years from the date on which the grant was
made. The exercise prices per share for the options are HK$0.90 and
HK$1.25.

The share options granted under the share option scheme vest
after 12 months (25%), 24 months (60%) and 36 months (100%)
respectively from date of grant and then exercisable within a period of
10 years. The subscription amount payable in respect of each share
upon the exercise of an option shall be determined by the board of
directors and shall be not less than the greater of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares on SEHK as stated in the SEHK's
daily quotations sheet on the date, which must be a business
day, of the written offer of such option (the “Date of Grant”);

(i)  the average closing price of the shares on the SEHK as stated
in the SEHK'’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days

immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and

(iii) ~ the nominal value of the shares.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited Z5@BEFE5ARAT

RIBERRFRBRRATIBRAES 8K KA -
R-ZZRF+ A= +/\BARR R I 518 2
RFFEEREF T @A - Z AR R=+7<1E
R1& - IR D RITTEEF 25% » 60% K 100% H)
Befn - RERHE BRI A ERSH A+ 4 - IR
THERRNDITEE - RE¥0.90TTRAE%H 1.25

ﬁo

ERE ARG+ @A  —THEEAAR=TX
A% - REBIERT B8R A0 RBBAED IR E
25% 60% K 100% * BEi& rI T HIRTTE
1T LB A T 2 ok B AR AR ST RO R BB SRS /R
E=gHET  ATERIRTIEETRS

() ABEENEEBOAHELAR] - X
WARBER)  AMRFE B IRER S
B 15 YT

(i) EBEERREAMAIAESER REIME
RER(BRPTFIAD FERE S PO A9 UL B
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21. Equity settled share-based transactions 21. UREZEZRHER &)

(continued)
(@)  The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the (a) FRNGEEERAEBREINBHMEENER
year are as follows, whereby all options are settled by physical 2 R R ARBIEAT

delivery of shares:

Contractual
Number of life of
instruments options
= Vesting conditions BRER
A SRR EREH
Options granted to directors:
ERTESHERE :
—on 24 November 2000 1,762,500 12 months (25%), 10 years
- RZEEEF+—A=+WMAH 24 months (60%) and 104
36 months (100%)
from 28 October 2005
BE=ETRF+A=+/\H
#EF 1218 A (25%) ~ 2418 A
(60%) % 361# A (100%)
—on 13 December 2001 1,762,500 12 months (25%), 10 years
- RZET—F+=-A+=H 24 months (60%) and 104
36 months (100%)
from 28 October 2005
BE-ZTRF+A=1+/\Bit
5F121@ A (25%) ~ 241& 8 (60%)
X36 1@ A (100%)
—on 14 October 2005 982,900 12 months (25%), 10 years
- R-_ZZTRE+A+MH 24 months (60%) and 104
36 months (100%)
from 28 October 2005
B=ZEERF+A=1+/\HiE
1218 A (25%) * 24 1@ A (60%)
K 361& A (100%)
—on 6 June 2007 2,921,121 12 months (25%), 10 years
— RZEZLFNANH 24 months (60%) and 104

36 months (100%)

from 6 June 2007
SN S S A =T i)

T 1218A (25%) ~ 2418 A (60%)

K36 1& A (100%)
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21. Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

21. IR EEE 2 RIDEH (&)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the
year are as follows, whereby all options are settled by physical
delivery of shares: (continued)

(@) FAGEBREBRR
R R R AR T

15 B 2 T #4  # A
L ()

Contractual
Number of life of
instruments options
= Vesting conditions BREN
A SRR EREH
Options granted to employees:
ERTEEMNERE
—in 2000 2,245,000 12 months (25%), 10 years
— R_ZEETHF 24 months (60%) and 106
36 months (100%)
from 28 October 2005
BE=ETRF+A=1+/\H
#Er12ME A (25%) ~ 2418 A (60% )
X 361& A (100%)
—in 2001 2,285,000 12 months (25%), 10 years
— R —F 24 months (60%) and 104
36 months (100%)
from 28 October 2005
BE-ETRF+A=+/\H
#ET12ME A (25%) ~ 2418 A (60% )
X361E A (100%)
—in 2002 795,000 12 months (25%), 10 years
- R=Z=Z = 24 months (60%) and 104
36 months (100%)
from 28 October 2005
B-ZEERF+A=+/\H
T 121E A (25%) ~ 2418 A (60%)
K 361& A (100%)
—in 2003 345,000 12 months (25%), 10 years
— R-BZT=4F 24 months (60%) and 106
36 months (100%)

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited 2 SEEFESHER AT
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21. Equity settled share-based transactions 21. UREZEZRHER &)

(continued)
(@)  The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the (a) FRNGEEERAEBREINBHMEENER
year are as follows, whereby all options are settled by physical REZ IR RABAT « (4)

delivery of shares: (continued)

Contractual
Number of life of
instruments options
= Vesting conditions BRER
A SRR EREH
Options granted to employees: (continued)
ERTFEENERE @ (&)
—in 2004 105,000 12 months (25%), 10 years
— RZEZWF 24 months (60%) and 104
36 months (100%)
from 28 October 2005
BE=ETRF+A=+/\H
#Er12ME A (25%) ~ 2418 A (60%)
X 361& A (100%)
—on 14 October 2005 11,031,351 12 months (25%), 10 years
- RZETRFTA+MA 24 months (60%) and 104
36 months (100%)
from 28 October 2005
BE-ZTRF+A=1+/\H
T 12{E A (25%) ~ 2418 A (60%)
X36 1@ A (100%)
—on 19 March 2007 7,364,204 12 months (25%), 10 years
- R=ZEZE+F=A+NH 24 months (60%) and 104

36 months (100%)
from 19 March 2007

BT +F=A+NH
#1218 A (25%) ~ 2418 A (60%)
K 361& A (100%)

31,599,576
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21. Equity settled share-based transactions 21. UREZEZRHER &
(continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share (b) MBEIRENEE RNEFEHEITHEERT
options are as follows:

2007 2006
—EBETLHF ZTERF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
IREFE 15 PR AE hniETEH B
TEE B 1118 ZH
HK$ '000 HK$ ‘000
BT TR BT Fhx
Outstanding as at 1 January R—A—HrEH 1.09 21,314 1.09 25,361
Exercised during the year REEANITHE 1.10 (134) 1.04 (443)
Granted during the year REEFRFE T 1.42 10,285 = =
Forfeited during the year REE AR UL 1.34 (2,388) 1.08 (3,604)
Outstanding as at 31 December A+ —A=+—H K&& 1.19 29,077 1.09 21,314
Exercisable as at 31 December A+=—A=+—8 A[{7{E 12,118 5,329
The options outstanding as at 31 December 2007 had exercise REZZBTLF+-A=+—8 ' MARTERE
prices ranging from HK$0.90 to HK$1.43 (2006: ranging FEAERTTEE ABEE 00 T E B 143 7T
from HK$0.90 to HK$1.25) and weighted average remaining (TR B0 TE B 1.257T) &
contractual life of ranging from 3 years to 10 years respectively IR BEAD R BEI3EE 106 (=
(2006: ranging from 4 years to 9 years). TERNF  BHAFEIF) o
(c)  Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) BRENATFERER
The fair value of services received in return for share options R EREMBER RS A TE - TH2R
granted are measured by reference to the fair value of share DEREEBREN D FESE - 2 WER
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the services BT AFEDREBEROZFRTEX A
received is measured based on a Black-Scholes model. The RS o BIRENTEFTFEH I AER AT
expected life of the option is used as an input into this model. FARETEER -

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited Z5@BEFE5ARAT
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21. Equity settled share-based transactions 21. UREZEZRHER &

(continued)

(c)  Fair value of share options and assumptions (continued) (c) PBRENAFERRRE)
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERE
Fair value at measurement date Rt 2 BN AFEE HK$0.28 N/A
Share price A& (& HK$1.42 N/A
Exercise price 111 E HK$1.42 to N/A

HK$1.43

Expected volatility (expressed as
weighted average

AR R (A N e AT AT
PR 2 i F R IE T 251)

volatility used in

the modelling under

Black-Scholes model) 37% N/A
Option life (expressed HEAR I B (Fefn D AT R HT AR =X

as weighted average FTF 2 IR Em=251)

life used in the

modelling under

Black-Scholes model) 5 years( ) N/A
Expected dividends TEAARR B 7% N/A
Risk-free interest rate A P 61| 2R 4.18% N/A

The risk-free interest rate used was based on the Exchange ERRFIE @ AR GESRIBEAEE -

Fund Notes.

T AR AR IR % 0 (R IR RO DB 15
B D) T8 1 - PR B R AL TR
DA LN EAERED T UBE - BHR
BILBERSARE - AEBARH N TER
MARS - ALEAREATFENE -

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life
of the share options), adjusted for any expected changes to
future volatility due to publicly available information. Expected
dividends are based on historical dividends. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect the fair
value estimates.

BT RBRB R ML o 518 AT REIRTS
ATHERKH BB - I G ARG - K iEH
FE R BT SRR o

Share options were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date fair
value measurement of the services received. There were no
market conditions associated with the share option grants.
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22. Capital and reserves

22. EXF f#fE

(a)  Share capital
(i) Authorised and issued share capital

(a) MRAS
(i)  ZEEREETRE

2007 2006
—EEF ZETRF
No. of No. of
shares Amounts shares Amounts
BHEE k-] &HEE o)
’000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$'000
T BEET T FH& BT IT
Authorised: JEIE
Ordinary shares of S EEEE0.207T
HK$0.20 (ZZTRF B
(2006: HK$0.20) each 0.20 7T ) By A% 1,250,000 250,000 1,250,000 250,000
Ordinary shares, issued ERTRBEEZBER
and fully paid:
As at 1 January in=JA—8 778,076 155,615 777,633 155,527
Shares issued BTN
(Note 22(a)(ii)) (BfzE22(a)i) 134 27 443 88
As at 31 December R+—A=+—H 778,210 155,642 778,076 155,615

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled

to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the

Company’s residual assets.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited 2 SEEFESHER AT
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22. Capital and reserves (continued) 22. EXRf#EE(E)
(a)  Share capital (continued) (@) R&A(#E)

(i)  During the year, options were exercised to subscribe (i) FA - BEREEE 147,000 T 2K
for 134,000 ordinary shares in the Company at a BT - LAFREEZANA 7] 134,000 A%
consideration of HK$147,000 of which HK$27,000 was AR - E AR B 27,000 TR AR
credited to share capital and the balance of HK$120,000 K - 8RFBB 120,000 7T AllET AR D
was credited to the share premium account. (B

(i)  Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at (i) REEBKREIE M RITEFEERENF
balance sheet date: Hf -

2007 2006

—eBLE  —TTAF

Exercise period Exercise price Number Number

1TEHA TEE £ ¢=] 2R
24 November 2000 to —TETE+ A TWHEE HK$0.90

13 December 2011 —T—Ft+=-A+=H 75 0.90 70 9,150,000 9,300,000
14 October 2005 to —ZETRF+ATIHAZE HK$1.25

13 October 2015 —E-—hF+A+=H B 1.257T 11,047,311 12,014,251
19 March 2007 to —ETHF=A+HAHZE HK$1.42

18 March 2017 —T—+F=A+\H B 1.427T 6,846,305 -
06 June 2007 to T FERANEE HK$1.43

05 June 2017 —Z—t%F,NAAEA B 1.437T 2,032,962 -

29,076,578 21,314,251
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22. EXRR @G (E)

(b) Reserves (b) FFiE
(i) The Group (1)

22. Capital and reserves (continued)

Z¥ 3/

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

AN TIRETE AENL
Share Capital Retained
premium reserve profits Total
B 1= E B E REER et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
As at 1 January 2006 RZZEZF—HA—H 116,744 780 30,568 148,092
Dividends approved in EFER
respect of the previous B S
year (Note 11) (H1at11) = - (23,329) (23,329)
Issue of new shares BITHR D 371 - - 371
Listing expenses adjustment* & A * 607 = = 607
Equity settled share-based AREEE 2 RN 5
transactions (Note 21) (Hfa£21) = 1,977 = 1,977
Profit for the year REZmF = = 83,216 83,216
Dividends declared in respect ZAREEE R
of the current year KRR B - - (37,326) (37,326)
As at 31 December 2006 RZTERF
+=—A=+—H 117,722 2,757 53,129 173,608
As at 1 January 2007 R-ZEEtHF—H—H 117,722 2,757 53,129 173,608
Dividends approved in EEFER
respect of the previous HERE
year (Note 11) (KtaE11) - - (39,685) (39,685)
Issue of new shares BITHR 5 120 - - 120
Equity settled share-based URELEZRDRS
transactions (Note 21) (Kta£21) - 2,050 - 2,050
Profit for the year RNEEEF - - 76,204 76,204
Dividends declared in respect ZAEETRZE
of the current year TREE A AR S - - (28,091) (28,091)
As at 31 December 2007 R-ZZ2LHF
+=H=+—~H 117,842 4,807 61,557 184,206

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited EZ@BETESERAF
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22. EXRR @G (E)

& (&)
(i) ARa]

22. Capital and reserves (continued)

(b)  Reserves (continued) (b)
(i)~ The Company

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KA B RRERSE AES
Share Capital Retained
premium reserve profits Total
B 1= E BR#E REER et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
PEETIT BT IT BT T BT IT
As at 1 January 2006 RZZEZF—HA—H 116,744 780 30,771 148,295
Dividends approved in EFER
respect of the previous B E
year (Note 11) (H1at11) = - (23,329) (23,329)
Issue of new shares BITHR D 371 - - 371
Listing expenses adjustment* & A * 607 = = 607
Equity settled share-based VAR HE#EE 2
transactions (Note 21) BHGXZ (KaE21) = 1,977 = 1,977
Profit for the year NG S A = = 86,675 86,675
Dividends declared in REEERE
respect of the current year KRR B - = (37,326) (37,326)
As at 31 December 2006 R-ZTZTRF
+=—A=+—~H 117,722 2,757 56,791 177,270
As at 1 January 2007 R-ZEEtF—H—H 117,722 2,757 56,791 177,270
Dividends approved in EFEER
respect of the previous HAERE
year (Note 11) (Bt 11) = - (39,685) (39,685)
Issue of new shares BITH R 120 = = 120
Equity settled share-bhased DREEHE 2
transactions (Note 21) BB S (BaE21) = 2,050 = 2,050
Profit for the year REEEF - - 64,964 64,964
Dividends declared in REEFEERE
respect of the current year TRER RS - - (28,091) (28,091)
As at 31 December 2007 REZZ2LF
+=A=+—H 117,842 4,807 53,979 176,628

The adjustment to listing expenses was due to a provision

recognised in the year ended 31 December 2005 being
reversed as the amount settled was less than the amount

provided.

© EMBANEE  DERBE-TT
R+ A=+— B ILEERERL
B EAEANSELRNERNS

i e o
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22. Capital and reserves (continued)

22. EXRR @G (E)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium
The application of the share premium account is
governed by Sections 48B of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

(i) Capital reserve
The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual
or estimated number of unexercised share options
granted to employees of the Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share
based payments in Note 1(n)(ii).

Distributability of reserves

As at 31 December 2007, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was HK$53,979,000 (2006: HK$56,791,000).
After the balance sheet date the directors proposed a final
dividend of HK cents 6.18 per ordinary share (2006: HK
cents 5.10 per share), amounting to HK$48,093,000 (2006:
HK$39,685,000). This dividend has not been recognised as a
liability at the balance sheet date.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to enable the Group to meet its liabilities as they fall due for
the foreseeable future.The Group has no external borrowing at
the balance sheet date.

The Group’s capital structure is regularly reviewed and
managed with due regard to the capital management objectives
of the Group.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited Z5@BEFE5ARAT

(c)

(e)
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BB 1 (n) (ii) BLARKAD B E
B S MR A & 5T BUR FTRER Y
AFE °

AR
N_EE+FF+_A=+—H" At
EFAARIREREANREELEE A
75 53,979,000t ( Z T FE N F : B
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23. Financial instruments

23. €T R

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risk arises in

the normal course of the Group’s business. These risks are limited by

the Group’s financial management policies and practices described

below.

(a)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

Credit and payment policy

When registering as a subscriber, a customer is automatically
assigned with a credit limit based on the amount of its deposit
or bank guarantee and is normally given credit periods
ranging from one day to one month. The amount of deposit is
determined on a customer-by-customer basis, depending on
its usage of the Company’s services. Generally, if a customer
reaches or exceeds its credit limit before the end of the normal
billing cycle, it may be given an increase in its credit limit.
However, if a customer is in default of payment for whatever
reason, its account is automatically suspended from operation
until all outstanding charges have been fully settled. For that
reason, customers may also, and often do, place deposits with
the Company from time to time to cover their charges.

There is, however, no credit policy for the Company’s ad
hoc customers who are required to pay the relevant charges
(including service charges, service centre handling fees and
Government fees) in full when using our over-the-counter
Services.

The Company does not have a general provisioning policy
in respect of trade receivables. Specific trade receivables
considered not recoverable will be written-off.

EREENEREBKBES  §8LER RY
BEd - MERINERR - ZERRZ I AEER
TXEENMBEERBRRRERMBR -

EERR
AEENEERREZ2RERUIRN -
BEERA—EFERE  UHEEEZ
FEERR

)

ERRTHEE

BEFECLRRAPEK  AKEEREER
ERRITEFRSE  BHREFPHE—RE
FEHEE  FEHARRY—RE—[EAR
TE - ARAEREFZERARBARBEN
ERE MENEEKREEE —KRM
5 MERPELREMNRBHMERESD
FBARFNEERE - EEEREA
EIRR - A - WE TP EEAIEHmIE
R HEFRISEPEEFEF BEE
EFZBBNAREENERAR/L - HER
f BFRENEEEELARAFER
T BT MNER -

AW ARRAEARERFPILEERK
R RERPEMEERGE - AR
EEXNERER  BRERBE - RET
LDFEERBTRE -

AR B W AR B AR RER S — R BB
R o R A SR UK (] O 4 E R LR
AT LA -
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23. Financial instruments (continued)

23. €M T R (&

(a)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the Group does not have any
significant concentration of credit risk. The maximum exposure
to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the balance sheet. Except for the financial
guarantee given by the Company in respect of a revolving credit
facility to an associate of the Company as disclosed in Note 26,
the Group does not provide any other guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables
are set out in Note 17.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short-term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to
cover expected cash demands, subject to approval by the
parent company’s board when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

Interest rate risk

Llective inlerest rates and repricing analysis

In respect of income-earning financial assets, the following
table indicates their effective interest rates at the balance sheet
date and the periods in which they reprice or the maturity
dates, if earlier.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited Z5@BEFE5ARAT
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23. Financial instruments (continued) 23. €T E (&
(c) Interest rate risk (continued) (c) FIEEBR(#E)
Fifective interest rates and repricing analysis (continued) BT R B E BT (4)
The Group
REE
2007 2006
—EELHF ZETRF
Effective One Effective One
interest year or interest year or
rate less rate less
BRAE —FHUT BEEME  —FHAN
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
BT T BT
Maturity dates for assets REIHBATE R B3
which do not reprice EENEEN
hefore maturity EL-i] =
Cash and bank deposits R & MIRITER 1.97 374,706 1.98 335,586
Held-to-maturity debt securities 5 =2 # B EHEES 4.57 69,342 4.57 69,587
The Company
¥ NN
2007 2006
—EELHF ZETRF
Effective One Effective One
interest year or interest year or
rate less rate less
BEANE —FUT BERFIE  —FHAT
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
BT T BT T
Maturity dates for assets R EIH AT R E F#H
which do not reprice EENEEN
before maturity Z|H8 A
Cash and bank deposits R MIRITIF 1.97 374,422 1.98 335,020
Held-to-maturity debt securities ~ #8 E£2|Hi B &5 &5 4.57 69,342 4.57 69,587

— 111



Notes to the Financial Statements

BT #RAR IR

23. Financial instruments (continued)

23. €T A

L (&

(d)

Foreign currency risk (d)  HNER B
The Group is not exposed to any significant currency risk as HRAEENKA A  BERAREY
its revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are predominately RSB EEFHE - Rt AEEw
denominated in the Group’s functional currency. ?ﬁfﬂﬂiﬁﬁ"ﬁgﬂ&i o
Sensitivity analysis (e) REBREDIT
In managing interest rate and foreign currency risks, the Group N6 [ BN R ANHNE B B B - TH BURNE
aims to reduce the impact of short-term fluctuations on the HERBEAERRFNTELSEZE - B
Group’s earnings. Over the longer term, however, permanent REME @ BRFEHKALE) 4
changes in foreign exchange and interest rates would have an IRERBFEERTE o
impact on consolidated earnings.
At 31 December 2007, it is estimated that an increase or E@:;ﬁzﬁti‘f'_ﬂ =+—H " #tEF
decrease of one percentage point in interest rates would HHFEMS  WENEEE EFH TR’
increase or decrease the Group’s profit before tax by —EE ‘,Eﬁ BRI 5T 7 &= [ 9 Bk 752 AT g 7
approximately HK$3,747,000 (2006: HK$3,356,000) so far as 1% & 18 ISR D 498 8 3,747,000 T (=&
the effect on interest-bearing deposits is concerned. TN B 3,356,000 7T) ©
Fair values f) AFE
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially RIEE+FER _EERF+_A=1+—
different from their fair values as at 31 December 2007 and A - BRT7EEN FAESRIANKRE
2006 except as follows: BEAFEHEERNS 5
2007 2006
—EZtF ZETRF
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
BRTEE AFE BREE NFE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BEEFIT BT
Held-to-maturity BEZES JHHEI
debt securities BEBE 69,342 70,282 69,587 69,463
The held-to-maturity debt securities will mature on 31 October BEZIHEGEREFRR=_ZZN\F+
2008. A=+—HZI8 -
Estimation of fair values (8 RAFEfME
Fair values for the unquoted equity investments are estimated ELETRARENAFE  HRMETA

using the discounted cash flows for similar listed companies
adjusted for the specific circumstances of the issuer.

Fair value for the unquoted equity investments is based on
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date without any
deduction for transaction costs.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited EZ@BETESERAF
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24. Commitments

24.

AiE

(a)

Capital commitments
Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2007
not provided for in the financial statements amounted to
HK$2,678,000 (2006: HK$522,000). They are in respect of
computer equipment.

Operating leases

The total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of property rentals are
payable as follows:

(a) EAREIE
R-_EELFE+ A=+ BRRUBR
FREBHREREIEL BB 2678,0007T
(ZZZ/RF: B 522 0007T) @ JHEANEE
BEEEME -

(b) HKEHE
ARDEE ST THBELRENRE
AR ERIT

2007 2006

—EELF ZETRF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Within one year —FR 126 644
More than one year but —EREBLRAE

within five years 201 126

327 770

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to
three years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms
are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.

25. Material related party transactions

25.

AEBRBLEEEHEAZEYE - Y
—RULH/B—E=F UAREERE
BB GRRESENE - ERBEABTE
BRAET -

EXBEALRS

During the year, transactions with the following parties are considered
as related party transactions.

Name of party
BEALTER

Financial Secretary Incorporated (“FSI”)

MR A RREE

KAZ Computer Services Hongkong Ltd (“KAZ Hong Kong”)
KAZ Computer Services Hongkong Ltd. ([KAZ & 1)

Digital Trade and Transportation Network Limited (“DTTNCo”)
HBIEE 5 EBRWEAR AT (TDTTNCo])

Systech On-Line Limited (“SOLL")
BEIEMEHE AR AR ([SOLL))

RAFE - BUTATETZRZBRBEEA
TR5 -

Relationship
&

Shareholder of the Company
ZA/NG i

Associate
SN
Associate
SN

Investment

rE
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25. Material related party transactions (continued)

25.

EXBEALRE (E)

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group entered into the following
material related party transactions.

BRI RREMB T RENR D RAERI - K
SEBETHEANMEALZZNOT :

(@)  Recurring transactions (a) KEETHRS
2007 2006
—EELF —EFER
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Facilities management expenses = 8 KAZ &
paid/payable to KAZ St AN YRR B
Hong Kong =53 8,677 8,655
Management fee, rental income 2 DTTNCo Y2 HR / fE U &9
and other income EEE e
received/receivable L ONSEE PN
from DTTNCo 673 806
Business Support System 27 DTTNCo Y Ex / fE Uk
(“BSS”) fee received/ MEBZIERRZR
receivable from DTTNCo ([BSS)) &M 2,944 685

The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the People’s Republic of China (“Government”)
holds approximately 12.29% of the Company’s issued share
capital in the name of FSI. Accordingly, the Government is a
shareholder of the Group. Transactions between the Group
and the Government departments or agencies of FSI, other
than those transactions that arise in the normal dealings
between the Government and the Group (such as payments
of taxes, leases, rates, etc), are considered to be related party
transactions.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited 2 SEEFESHER AT

R EE AR AN B E SR A 1T IR E B ([ B
D URBEARREBEZRES - BER
12.29% RNARIEBITRA o Bkt - BN A
REERER 2 — o 75 B B BT EB P9 kB
BRI RRZEE THEZHNRZ S (TaE
BFERALE MWIEEER @ Enx
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25. Material related party transactions (continued)

(a)  Recurring transactions (continued)

Material related party transactions entered into by the Group

include:

(@)

On 29 December 2003, the Group entered into an
agreement with the Government to provide front-end
Government electronic trading services in relation to
import and export declarations required under the
Import and Export Registration Regulations, dutiable
commodities permit and cargo manifests in respect of
cargoes carried by air, rail or water for a term of five
years expiring on 31 December 2008 (unless earlier
terminated in accordance with its terms) (“2003 GETS
Agreement”). The Government paid the Group a nominal
price of HK$1 in return for the Group performing the
services in accordance with the terms and conditions
set out in the agreement. On 17 July 2007, the 2003
GETS Agreement was extended upon its expiry on 31
December 2008 for a further term of one year to 31
December 2009 for a nominal price of HK$1 paid by the
Government.

On 9 December 2004, the Group entered into an
agreement with the Government to provide front-end
GETS services in relation to Certificate of Origin and
Production Notification for a term of four years expiring
on 31 December 2008 (unless earlier terminated in
accordance with its terms) (“2004 GETS Agreement”).
The Government paid the Group a nominal price of
HK$1 in return for the Group performing the services in
accordance with the terms and conditions set out in the
agreement. On 17 July 2007, the 2004 GETS Agreement
was extended upon its expiry on 31 December 2008 for
a further term of one year to 31 December 2009 for a
nominal price of HK$1 paid by the Government.

EITHR 5 (8)
ELEATNERBEATRZ B

—ET=F+_A-t+NB  FKE
SR ATET SR - B O (BRD)

FRBIFTARE B S O SRR AL AR Y
BINETE SR « R mar a5
REBMZE - B IOKEHE R
B o B ARAT WK TN
FrZA=t+—HEm ' EREEE
TR FLIERIN ZEZE=F GETS
% %) BT E SRS EARR 7 s A
B2 R RIGHRITRBRASE X
RNABITHEERE RZTZL
FLA++HR - —EE=FGETSH
BHERR_ZZNF+_A=+—
HESER—FE2=—FThF+=A
=+—HIH  BITE R EE
1T BERAE -

—TTNE+ZANA  AEEEK
FIETSL % - BLEEHD SRRE R EER
ﬂiﬁﬁhfmmmﬁmw% 1
FARNE ZENF+=A
:+—5Fﬁvﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬂh$ﬂ
LIEBRINT =TT MEGETS g l) ©

BT B s AN S BAR R 17 5 Ak 2 16K
&%WEGW%H$E@§H%%1
THEERE - R=ZTTLF LA
++H —ZEZEMFGETS AR
TR N\F+=—A=+—HZH
ER—FZ2_TTNF+=A=+—
BEH - BFE RS 1T
ZERE -
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25. Material related party transactions (continued)

25. EXBAEALRE ()

(a)

Recurring transactions (continued)

On 9 December 2004, the Group entered into an agreement
with the Government to extend the agreement dated 10
October 2002 (as further amended by a supplemental
agreement dated 29 December 2003) for the provision of front-
end GETS services in relation to the Textiles Trader Registration
Scheme for a further term of one year expired on 31 December
2005. The Government paid the Group a nominal price of $1
in return for the Group performing the services in accordance
with the terms and conditions set out in the agreement. As
further amended by the letter of renewal dated 24 December
2005 and the letter of renewal dated 29 September 2006, the
agreement was extended to 31 December 2007 for a nominal
price of HK$1 paid by the Government. On 17 July 2007,
the Group entered into an agreement dated 13 July 2007 to
extend the letter of renewal dated 29 September 2006 upon
its expiry on 31 December 2007 for a further term of two years
to 31 December 2009 for a nominal price of HK$1 paid by the
Government.

Each of the 2003 GETS Agreement and 2004 GETS Agreement
included an arrangement whereby the Group is required
to collect Government fees and charges on behalf of the
Government in relation to certain trade-related documents to
which each such agreement related and in respect of which
the Group provides GETS Services. These fees and charges
collected from customers are paid over to the Government
within the next working day.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited Z5@BEFE5ARAT
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25. Material related party transactions (continued)

25. EXBAEALRE ()

(a)  Recurring transactions (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

On 12 April 2002, the Group entered into an
agreement with KAZ Hong Kong for the provision of
system management services such as computing
services, system security and other related services at
HK$640,000 per month for an initial period of eight
years. Subsequently, on 16 January 2003, the Group
entered into a price adjustment agreement with KAZ
Hong Kong for the provision of services at HK$651,600
per month for a period of eight years commencing on 1
January 2004.

On 23 October 2004, the Group entered into a licence
agreement with the Government (as represented by
the Commissioner for Census and Statistics) under
which the Group was granted a licence to use the
2005 version of the Hong Kong Harmonised System
codes and descriptions (“HKHS”) for provision of
the GETS services. The licence agreement is of one
year's duration, and the Group paid HK$22,575 to the
Government for the licence.

The agreement was extended to 31 December 2008
under which the Group was granted a license to use the
2008 version of HKHS and the Group paid HK$31,745 to
the Government for the licence.

On 31 August 2005, DTTNCo entered into an agreement
with the Government under which DTTNCo agreed to
design, set-up operate and maintain a DTTN system on
the terms and conditions set out therein.

On 31 August 2005, the Company, FSI and DTTNCo
entered into an agreement to provide for the
management and operation of DTTNCo and to regulate
the rights of the shareholders of DTTNCo.

(a)

REETNR S (&)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

—TEE_FMNA+=H  AEEHE
KAZ BRI LB R RS E IR R
(B WERRT - RFIRE R E A1
BARRTS) Mt - R\ ERIIEE
AT A 640,0007T © B A=
TT=F— 1+ H  KAEELEKAZ
BRI A ARG ERTAE R
KBAE BB 651,6007T * W
—ETMFE-A—B4&E% - AN
¢ o

R-ZEZTNE+A—+=H A&
BRI AT (R R st lm iR R KK ) &]
SRR R o UL - REREER LG
REBHBAGNE(ZZEZTHFRA)
(THKHS 1) {57 B e 3t A9 REETAE - LA
IR GETS IRFS © 45T 17 as B U
—F - MAKEERZ TS B
22 575 7T °

ZHBEEE =TT N\F+=A=1+—
H - BREASEEEREFEHAHKHS =
T N\ FIRARRSTE - WERZE
FTRE MBS S A 31,745 7T ©

—ZEZRENH=+—H ' DITNCo
ERE TR S fha% o #E UL - DTTNCo Al
BIRE P OIER R AARIRET « &L -
LR M HMEE DTTN 258 o

—ZEERFNA=F+—A8 ' &AQ7F)
B Bk 7] &) & )% B & DTTNCo 7] 3Z 1#3
#% ' 51BADTTNCo BB R EE + A
K& DTTNCo IR FYHEE -
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25. Material related party transactions (continued)

25. EXBAEALRE ()

(a)

Recurring transactions (continued)

(vi)

On 17 May 2006, the Company and DTTNCo entered
into a Business Support System Development and
Service Agreement (“the Agreement”), pursuant to
which the Company agreed to develop and operate a
business support system for DTTNCo. The business
support system is an information system covering
customer registration and administration operation,
customer service operation and billing operation. The
Agreement commenced on 17 May 2006 and shall
expire on 31 December 2008. Pursuant to the terms
of the Agreement, DTTNCo shall upon the signing
of the Agreement pay the Company initial costs of
HK$2,140,000 for the development of the business
support system and the related information system
infrastructure set-up. The average monthly subscription
fee was HK$196,399 for the second half of 2006 and
is HK$164,192 for 2007 and 2008. The maximum
annual subscription fees for 2006, 2007 and 2008 are
HK$3,640,000, HK$3,690,000 and HK$4,950,000
respectively.

Amounts due from/(to) related parties

(a)

(b)

REETHR S (#)

(vi)

RZTZERFRA+LH  ~AQHA
B3 DTTNCo 5] 32 BSS B 2 & AR 75 173
Z ([ZWmzl - REEZ DS AR
AIEE A DTTNCo 3 R & EK L
BES EBIERFEE—EEM
Rz MEREER  THEE-
EPRSEERIREERE - xha i
R_ZERFRATEABER
HR—_EEN\F+=_A=1+—H8E
o IR IRFZ HhaE < (&5K - DTTNCoZR
i A - R YNE SRR b1
2,140,0007T ' {ERRBEXEB IR R
HRERAEEANRGEZ 2P E
B RZTTAFT+F  8AFH
BRTS B AE15196,399 7T * —ZEE
+ER =TT )\FHAE 164,192
Lo —BERE  —ZTELFER-F
ZNFEFRERBED R ABE
3,640,0007T * /&% 3,690,0007T K7
# 4,950,000 7T °

fEU(FEfT) BE AL 30R

2007 2006

—EEtHF —“EBERF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Government (Note25(b)(i)) B (B2 25(0)0)) (6,139) (11,709)
SOLL (Note 25(b)(ii)) SOLL (K77t 25(b)(ii)) (220) (198)
KAZ Hong Kong (Note 25(b)(ii) KAZ & (f1aE 25(b)(ii) 3,616 3,616
DTTNCo (Note 25(b)(ii)) DTTNCo (4722 25(b)(ii)) 1,440 1,415
(1,303) (6,876)

(i)

(ii)

Amounts due to Government represent transactions fees
collected on their behalf and payable on the next working
day and other expenses payable.

Amounts due (to)/from SOLL, KAZ Hong Kong and
DTTNCo are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

(ii)

ENBARERERTRRHR 5 E
RAREMENFES  ZEFERRKE
& — (AT {E BBUSIRAT ©

(FEfF)/FEUR SOLL K2 DTTNCo B 3k 18
EIEH - R ERAREREFEE -

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited EZ@BETESERAF
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25. Material related party transactions (continued)

25. EXBAEALRE ()

(c)

Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel, including
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in Note 8

(c)

T2EEASHE
UTRIEEEAENME - BEREA
ASWBECAARRESN - MREM

and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in Note IRBEE S T Fr R 8 X NHIFIA -
9, is as follows:

2007 2006

—EZLF ZEERF
HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT
Short-term employee benefits HHRERF 11,170 11,745
Post-employment benefits KRIEZERET] 54 63
Equity compensation benefits e N 547 413
11,771 12,221

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note 5(a)).

26. Contingent liabilities

e @Bt A [MBEKAI(ZHE5E))

26. B EE

(a)

In January 2003, the Group provided a bank guarantee
amounting to HK$1,170,000, in respect of a revolving
credit facility granted to KAZ Hong Kong. The guarantee is a
continuing security and shall not be released or discharged
until the expiration of six months after the payment, discharge
or satisfaction in full of the guaranteed liability.

Pursuant to the terms of the 2003 GETS Agreement, the Group
has obtained a Performance Bond line of HK$2,000,000
from a bank as the guarantee to the Government for the due
performance of the 2003 GETS Agreement by the Group.
The performance bond line facility bears commission rate of
0.95% per annum subject to a minimum of HK$3,000 for each
renewal and is secured by a charge over deposit in the amount
of HK$2,120,000. The Performance Bond was replaced by
a bank guarantee on 9 August 2007 at the request of the
Government under the same facility as the Performance Bond.
The facility is subject to review by 15 November 2008.

Pursuant to the terms of the 2004 GETS Agreement, the Group
provided a bank guarantee in the amount of HK$120,000 from a
bank as the guarantee to the Government for the due performance
of 2004 GETS Agreement by the Group. The guarantee is provided
under the same facility as in Note 26(b) above.

(a)

(b)

(c)

ZZT=F—f  AEEFRKAZEBEE
RTEIR{E BREEIRAE 1,170,000 oA R
THRR - ZERBHFEEER RERE
2SI - BERk BT B 7N E AR
MMIRES R

BIE=TT=F GETS =M ~NEE
B [ — R IRITEF ,%%2000000753’”%
HRBREE  (ERASEBZRRETT
=4 GETS s M MBUR R R - BA
REBEFEERTFALE0IB%TE + X
SEAAMN R DB 3,000 © WEH
#& 2,120,000 TTIF RV RS/ E AR - R =
ﬁﬁti/\ﬂna BB ZEK - BAR

BWEAREORERREEREENRT
W%Fﬁ**{t c ZIEEBERN-TT/N\F
+—A+HB#%E

—77

RIE—TTPUE GETS AR - AEE
B[ — KIRITEUS A HE 120,000 7T HY R 1T HE
& ERAREEZSET _TTMFGETS
ek M A BT R LA HEAR - SR PERIEHEER
£ 26(0) HRMEERE -
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27.

Non-adjusting post balance sheet event

2]. BRERERRARZEE

After the balance sheet date the directors proposed a final dividend of
HK cents 6.18 per share (2006: HK cents 5.10 per share) for the year
ended 31 December 2007, amounting to HK$48,093,000 (2006:
HK$39,685,000). This dividend has not been recognised as a liability
at the balance sheet date.

REER®R EFHABE_TTLF+ A
=+ AEFRERERHEEK6.18EIL(=ZF
TNEF BIK5.1078(L) ABUE 48,093,000t (=
TTNEF ¢ B#539,685,0007T) - R EBREEH
WAERREE

28. Comparative figures 28. L BEF
In past years, cash and cash equivalents included deposits with bank. RBAFE  RekRSESEVMBRERITER
These deposits have been separately shown in the balance sheet as EGRER—_EELE+_A=1+—HBNEE
at 31 December 2007. Accordingly, the comparative figures in the BERADHIIR - Bt BFHRROLRET
financial statements have been re-classified. BEEHNHE -

29. Accounting estimates and judgements 29. EEH{h T & I

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Note 21 contains information about the assumptions and the risk
factors relating to fair value of share options granted. Other key
sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Interest in associates

As explained in Note 1(f), the Group’s and the Company’s
investments in associates are stated at the Group’s share of
the associates’ net assets, and at cost less impairment losses,
respectively. As at 31 December 2007, the carrying value of the
Group’s and the Company’s investment in DTTNCo was HK$43
million, which was arrived at after taking into consideration the
estimated recoverable amount of DTTNCo’s non-current assets
based on the present value of DTTNCo's estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the pre-tax rate that reflects the current market risk
assessment of the business. Measuring the recoverable amount of
DTTNCo’s assets requires a significant level of judgement as this
involves estimating future cashflows from a business with only a
short operating history and determining an appropriate discount
rate that takes into consideration the inherent risks of the business.
Nevertheless, these judgements represent management’s best
estimate of the market potential and business prospects and are
reviewed by management on an ongoing basis. As the business of
DTTNCo was launched in October 2006 and is still in an early stage
of operations, the future cash flows are highly unpredictable and
actual outcomes may be higher or lower than the estimated results.
Any adjustment to the recoverable amount of DTTNCo’s non-current
assets would have a direct impact on the Group’s and the Company’s
profit for the year and net assets at the balance sheet date.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited B Z@EFESHERAR]
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RIF5#RAR IR

30. Possible impact of amendments, new

standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the annual accounting period
ended 31 December 2007

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the accounting period ended 31
December 2007 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and new interpretations
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial position.

In addition, the following development may result in new or amended
disclosures in the financial statements:

BHESLUBHRETIZLY  StMASERM
—LEIIE MEFTERI R RE - AMBE—TT+
FTZA=+—HLEEHAFERARER  TRR
BELERR PR ©

AREER I EAIERT - FEER KRB BETTH
i BRFEEHEREERABRSEELNTE - 2
SRENER - RERAZEER] - FEEA M2
B Y TeHAKENKERE MU BRRESE
BEAVE -

BSh + AT RIS T B8 B BB T R
HRETHE

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

AT BHA

HEZBH

BN EEEN

HKFRS 8 Operating segments 1 Janaury 2009
BT s AR R 55 8 5% EEDHEL —EENF-H—H
HK(IFRIC) 13 Customer loyalty programmes 1 July 2008
&t (BFR B 53R B BT E —ETNFtA—H

RELZEE)FE13%
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FiveYear Financial Summary
hEFEI BT E

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
—EBEFE T RF TTRHF —TTNPF —TT=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT T BT T BT T

Results ESE
(year ended 31 December) (Btz1+=-HA=+—H
UFE)

Turnover ] 245,082 248,300 249,101 279,706 308,481
Profit from operations pd=yral 120,144 119,300 110,293 123,637 133,299
Finance costs B TSR AR - - - (3) (21)
Impairment loss on investment in 3F_E TR B HEE

unlisted equity securities 2B fEEE - (10,000) - (40,000) (7,500)
Share of losses of associates ZikfEY NGl ) i) (23,955) (7,694) (787) = (4,114)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of HEHBA A

subsidiary Wz / (E518) - - 347 (55) -
Gain on partial disposal HEHE R R D

of an associate W e 345 622 = = =
Profit before taxation Br AT 96,534 102,228 109,853 83,579 121,664
Taxation THIA (20,330) (19,012) (18,456) (20,586) (23,801)
Profit attributable to equity N EIRRAERS

shareholders of the Company A ANEEEF 76,204 83,216 91,397 62,993 97,863
Assets and Liabilities EERER
(as at 31 December) (R+=H=+—H)
Total non-current assets JEMENE EAREE 93,193 193,040 154,520 37,350 69,059
Total current assets mENEELRRE 475,403 369,464 380,515 449,700 427,820
Total assets HBEE 568,596 562,504 535,035 487,050 496,879
Total non-current liabilities EmEaERzE (3,127) (3,596) (6,539) (5,705) (8,635)
Total current liabilities BB (FERRE (225,621) (229,685) (224,877) (222,388) (223,802)
Total liabilities BWaE (228,748) (233,281) (231,416) (228,093) (232,437)
Net assets BEFE 339,848 329,223 303,619 258,957 264,442

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited Z5@BEFE5ARAT



Investor Relations

REEZEBIE

The Company encourages two-way communication with both its institutional
and individual investors. Extensive information about the Company’s
activities is provided in the Annual Report. There is regular communication
with institutional and individual investors. Enquiries from individuals on
matters relating to their shareholdings and the business of the Company are
welcomed and are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

Financial Calendar

AAR—EBBEAREREAAREEFLERED
ARBEBOFREMTIBERNFR - AR EHEKIE
REAAREEER o LERATNREAEARFBRRA
RAER  HEVLEANRELGE AARSRRAEH
ATRHEFEEFR -

Closure of Register of Members 6-9 May 2008

Annual Dividend Payment Date On or about 20 May 2008

2008 Annual General Meeting 9 May 2008

Listings

B B
TERERGBEES —ET)N\F
HANBENH
FEREIKEAR —ZTTNF
AA -+ HAE
R N\FRREFRE —ET)N\F
AANE
tm

The Company’s shares have been listed on Main Board of The Stock of
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 28 October 2005.

Annual Report 2007

ARARBE-TFRET A TN\BREEBHAR
SHERATERLED -

—EELFFR

This Annual Report 2007, in both English and Chinese, is now available in
printed form and on the Company’s website at www.tradelink.com.hk.

Stock Code

D =TT FFRP RSUGRAEGENRIA - IRAI R
ARRA T 480 www. tradelink.com.hk & °

AT SR

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited — 00536

EBBERSEMR AT —00536

Company Secretary NEWE
Mr. LI Fuk Kuen, Wilfred TRRELE
Registered Office S EE
11/F & 12/F, Tower B EBEE

Regent Centre MEE B 63 %
63 Wo Yi Hop Road BP0 B EE
Kwai Chung, Hong Kong 11K 1218

Telephone: +852 2599 1600
Fax: +852 2506 0188

EEE : +852 2599 1600
{EH : +852 2506 0188
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Investor Relations
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Share Registrars BRMPBEETE
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited ERRREFLHELARAR
Shops 1712-1716, 17/F BEBT

Hopewell Centre EEKER 1835

183 Queen’s Road East AL 171E

Wanchai, Hong Kong 171221716 &

Telephone: +852 2862 8628
Fax: +852 2865 0990

B 3E ¢ +852 2862 8628
85 : +852 2865 0990

Investor Relations REERBF

Ms. NG May Yuk, Frances REFLZL

Senior Vice President (Investor Relations and Corporate Communications) =R BB R (8 & R R EERE)
Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited BoRETESERAT

11/F & 12/F, Tower B, Regent Centre BEEE

63 Wo Yi Hop Road

Kwai Chung, Hong Kong
Telephone: +852 2106 5237

Fax: +852 2506 0188

Email: frances.ng@tradelink.com.hk

Website

MEAB635E
BRPLBELIERI2E

TS +852 2106 5237

{58 : +852 2506 0188

FBH : frances.ng@tradelink.com.hk

Ak

www.tradelink.com.hk

In case of inconsistencies between the English and Chinese versions, the

English version shall prevail to the extent of such inconsistency.

- Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited 2 SEEFESHER AT
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Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited
11/F & 12/F, Tower B, Regent Centre,
63 Wo Yi Hop Road, Kwai Chung, Hong Kong
Sales Hotline: 2599 1700 Fax: 2506 0188
Corporate Website: www.tradelink.com.hk Business Portal: www.tradelink-ebiz.com

EZRETESZRERRAT

BAZBANE S ERERT OBEIERIE
BERAR 25091700 fHE : 25060188
ANEAHE - www.tradelinkcomhk B FE S EHM © www.tradelink-ebiz.com
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